

## Section I

### Notice of Development of Proposed Rules and Negotiated Rulemaking

**DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL  
REGULATION**

**Construction Industry Licensing Board**

RULE NO.:       RULE TITLE:

61G4-15.0014   Apprenticeship

**PURPOSE AND EFFECT:** The Board proposes the promulgation of the rule to allow individuals to gain “active experience” required for licensing by successfully completing an apprenticeship program.

**SUBJECT AREA TO BE ADDRESSED:** The apprenticeship program.

**RULEMAKING AUTHORITY:** 489.108, FS.

**LAW IMPLEMENTED:** 489.105(3)(m), 489.111(2)(c), 489.113, 489.115, FS.

**IF REQUESTED IN WRITING AND NOT DEEMED UNNECESSARY BY THE AGENCY HEAD, A RULE DEVELOPMENT WORKSHOP WILL BE NOTICED IN THE NEXT AVAILABLE FLORIDA ADMINISTRATIVE REGISTER.**

**THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT AND A COPY OF THE PRELIMINARY DRAFT, IF AVAILABLE, IS:** Daniel Biggins, Executive Director, Construction Industry Licensing Board, 2601 Blair Stone Road, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1039 or telephone: (850)487-1395, or by electronic mail to Donald.Shaw@myfloridalicense.com.

**THE PRELIMINARY TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT IS NOT AVAILABLE.**

## Section II

### Proposed Rules

**DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL  
REGULATION**

**Board of Employee Leasing Companies**

RULE NO.:       RULE TITLE:

61G7-10.001   Examination of Financial Records:  
Verification of Compliance

**PURPOSE AND EFFECT:** The proposed rule amendment clarifies the rule language and reduces the filing burden on employee leasing companies.

**SUMMARY:** The proposed rule amendment reduces the documentation that employee leasing companies must file in the second and fourth calendar quarters. Board Form DBPR EL-4504 is updated to coincide with the amended rule language.

**SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COSTS AND LEGISLATIVE RATIFICATION:**

The Agency has determined that this will not have an adverse impact on small business or likely increase directly or indirectly regulatory costs in excess of \$200,000 in the aggregate within one year after the implementation of the rule. A SERC has not been prepared by the Agency.

The Agency has determined that the proposed rule is not expected to require legislative ratification based on the statement of estimated regulatory costs or if no SERC is required, the information expressly relied upon and described herein: During discussion of the economic impact of this rule at its Board meeting, the Board concluded that this rule change will not have any impact on licensees and their businesses or the businesses that employ them. The rule will not increase any fees, business costs, personnel costs, will not decrease profit opportunities, and will not require any specialized knowledge to comply. This change will not increase any direct or indirect regulatory costs. Hence, the Board determined that a Statement of Estimated Regulatory Costs (SERC) was not necessary and that the rule will not require ratification by the Legislature. No person or interested party submitted additional information regarding the economic impact at that time.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding a statement of estimated regulatory costs, or provide a proposal for a lower cost regulatory alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

**RULEMAKING AUTHORITY:** 468.522, 468.529(4) FS.

**LAW IMPLEMENTED:** 468.529(4), 468.535 FS.

**IF REQUESTED WITHIN 21 DAYS OF THE DATE OF THIS NOTICE, A HEARING WILL BE SCHEDULED AND ANNOUNCED IN THE FAR.**

**THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS:** Richard Morrison, Executive Director, Board of Employee Leasing Companies, 2601 Blair Stone Road, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0783, Richard.Morrison@myfloridalicense.com

**THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:**

61G7-10.001 Examination of Financial Records;  
Verification of Compliance.

(1) In accordance with sSections 468.525(3)(d) and 468.535, F.S., the department may make investigations, audits, or reviews of each individual or company licensed pursuant to Section 468.526(1), F.S., to determine whether it has violated or is in danger of violating Chapter 468, Part XI, F.S.; Chapter 455, F.S.; or any rule of the board or department. ~~An examination of each company’s balance sheet and income statement will be made each quarter to verify positive working~~

~~capital and accounting net worth.~~ In order for the Board to determine that each employee leasing company has maintained net worth and positive working capital, each employee leasing company shall submit quarterly reports. The reports a balance sheet and income statement every quarter to the department for verification. Each employee leasing company shall also submit a statement to the Board of Employee Leasing Companies affirming that it is in compliance with Section 468.529(4), F.S., in that it has adequate reserves to pay, when due, all payroll and payroll related taxes, workers' compensation and health related premiums, and amounts due under any plan of self insurance. This statement shall be made on Board Form DBPR EL-4504, Quarterly Report Form, effective ~~10/20195/2014~~, incorporated herein by reference and available at <http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-02203>. The reports shall be submitted to the department within 75 days of the end of each quarter.

(a) ~~The first and third quarterly reports shall include a balance sheet and income statement demonstrating that the employee leasing company has adequate reserves to pay, when due, all payroll and payroll-related taxes, workers' compensation and health related premiums, and amounts due under any plan or self-insurance. A copy of the company's workers' compensation certificate of insurance in effect for the applicable quarter shall be submitted.~~

(b) ~~For the second and the fourth quarterly reports, no balance sheet or income statement shall be submitted. Each employee leasing company shall submit a copy of the company's workers' compensation certificate of insurance in effect for the applicable quarter, and filed with a copy of the company's workers' compensation certificate of insurance in effect for the current quarter. All required submissions shall be made in furtherance of a licensure renewal application and shall be submitted to the department within 75 days of the end of each quarter. The department will accept a timely filed annual financial report in lieu of a quarterly report for the last quarter in an employee leasing company's fiscal year.~~

(2) No change.

(3) No change.

Rulemaking Authority 468.522, 468.529(4) FS. Law Implemented ~~468.525(3)(d), 468.529(4), 468.535~~ FS. History—New 8-12-92, Amended 6-1-93, Formerly 21EE-10.001, Amended 5-8-94, 12-19-94, 3-1-05, 2-3-13, 2-18-15, 1-24-18, \_\_\_\_\_.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE:

Board of Employee Leasing Companies

NAME OF AGENCY HEAD WHO APPROVED THE

PROPOSED RULE: Board of Employee Leasing Companies

DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY

HEAD: July 17, 2019

DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT

PUBLISHED IN FAR: October 1, 2019

**DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH**

**Board of Nursing Home Administrators**

RULE NO.:

RULE TITLE:

64B10-15.001 Continuing Education for Licensure  
Renewal

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The Board proposes a rule amendment that will update the rule language requirements for continuing education for licensure renewal.

SUMMARY: The rule amendment updates the rule language requirements for continuing education for licensure renewal.

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COSTS AND LEGISLATIVE RATIFICATION:

The Agency has determined that this will not have an adverse impact on small business or likely increase directly or indirectly regulatory costs in excess of \$200,000 in the aggregate within one year after the implementation of the rule. A SERC has not been prepared by the Agency.

The Agency has determined that the proposed rule is not expected to require legislative ratification based on the statement of estimated regulatory costs or if no SERC is required, the information expressly relied upon and described herein: : During discussion of the economic impact of this rule at its Board meeting, the Board concluded that this rule change will not have any impact on licensees and their businesses or the businesses that employ them. The rule will not increase any fees, business costs, personnel costs, will not decrease profit opportunities, and will not require any specialized knowledge to comply. This change will not increase any direct or indirect regulatory costs. Hence, the Board determined that a Statement of Estimated Regulatory Costs (SERC) was not necessary and that the rule will not require ratification by the Legislature. No person or interested party submitted additional information regarding the economic impact at that time.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding a statement of estimated regulatory costs, or provide a proposal for a lower cost regulatory alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

RULEMAKING AUTHORITY: 456.013(6), (7), 468.1685(1), 468.1715(3) FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 456.013, 468.1715(3) FS.

IF REQUESTED WITHIN 21 DAYS OF THE DATE OF THIS NOTICE, A HEARING WILL BE SCHEDULED AND ANNOUNCED IN THE FAR.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: Anthony Spivey, Executive Director, Board of Nursing Home Administrators, 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin #C07, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3257, Anthony.Spivey@flhealth.gov.

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

64B10-15.001 Continuing Education for Licensure Renewal.

(1) Every person licensed pursuant to chapter 468, part II, F.S. shall be required to obtain continuing education which contributes to increasing or enhancing the licensee’s professional skill or which enables the licensee to keep abreast of changes that affect the field of nursing home administration. For the first renewal period after initial licensure, the licensee shall complete two (2) hours of medical errors and one (1) hour of HIV/AIDS. The licensee is otherwise exempt during the first renewal period from the continuing education requirements stated in subsection (2) of this rule.

(2) For each subsequent renewal period, to satisfy the requirements of this rule, in each biennium a licensee shall have a minimum of forty (40) contact hours of continuing education credit. A contact hour shall consist of fifty (50) clock minutes. In any biennium after the first renewal period:

(a) Through (c) No change.

(3) Through (12) No change.

Rulemaking Authority 456.033, 456.013(6), (7), 468.1685(1), 468.1715(3), 468.1725 FS. Law Implemented 456.033, 456.013, 468.1715(3), 468.1725 FS. History—New 12-11-80, Amended 2-20-83, 5-2-84, Formerly 21Z-15.01, Amended 12-31-86, 2-26-89, 11-19-91, Formerly 21Z-15.001, 61G12-15.001, Amended 9-4-96, 10-20-96, 7-21-97, Formerly 59T-15.001, Amended 5-15-00, 11-4-02, 5-7-06, 4-8-07, 10-24-07, 10-11-10, 8-8-13, 2-10-14, 1-31-16, 10-3-16, 11-21-18, 7-4-19, \_\_\_\_\_.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE:  
Board of Nursing Home Administrators

NAME OF AGENCY HEAD WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Board of Nursing Home Administrators

DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: August 8, 2019

DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAR: October 2, 2019

**DEPARTMENT OF CHILDREN AND FAMILIES**

**Economic Self-Sufficiency Program**

RULE NO.: 65A-1.603  
RULE TITLE: Food Assistance Program Income and Expenses

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The Department intends to amend rule 65A-1.603, F.A.C., to update the standard and basic utility allowances, as well as the telephone standard and homeless shelter deduction.

SUMMARY: The standard utility allowance, basic utility allowance, and homeless shelter deduction will all be increased. The telephone standard will be reduced.

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COSTS AND LEGISLATIVE RATIFICATION:

The Agency has determined that this will not have an adverse impact on small business or likely increase directly or indirectly regulatory costs in excess of \$200,000 in the aggregate within one year after the implementation of the rule. A SERC has not been prepared by the Agency.

The Agency has determined that the proposed rule is not expected to require legislative ratification based on the statement of estimated regulatory costs or if no SERC is required, the information expressly relied upon and described herein: The Department used a checklist to conduct an economic analysis and determine if there is an adverse impact or regulatory costs associated with this rule that exceeds the criteria in section 120.541(2)(a), F.S. Based upon this analysis, the Department has determined that the proposed rule is not expected to require legislative ratification.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding a statement of estimated regulatory costs, or provide a proposal for a lower cost regulatory alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

RULEMAKING AUTHORITY: 414.45, FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 414.31, FS.

IF REQUESTED WITHIN 21 DAYS OF THE DATE OF THIS NOTICE, A HEARING WILL BE SCHEDULED AND ANNOUNCED IN THE FAR.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: Jodi Abramowitz. Jodi can be reached at (850)717-4470 or Jodi.abramowitz@myflfamilies.com.

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

65A-1.603 Food Assistance Program Income and Expenses.

(1) Rounding Income and Expenses. With the exception of the benefit reduction, cents resulting from budget calculations are retained at each level in determining the assistance group’s (AG’s) food assistance benefits. The benefit reduction is rounded up to the next whole dollar.

(2) Standard Utility Allowance. A standard utility allowance (SUA) of ~~\$361~~ ~~\$359~~ must be used by AGs who incur, or within the eligibility period expect to incur, heating or cooling expenses separate and apart from their rent or mortgage and by AGs who receive direct or indirect assistance authorized under the Low-Income Home Energy Assistance Act of 1981. Actual utility expenses are not allowed. Any additional utility expenses, including the telephone standard, are not used.

(3) Basic Utility Allowance. A basic utility allowance (BUA) of ~~\$291~~ ~~\$290~~ must be used by AGs who do not incur heating or cooling expenses, but do incur utility expenses such as electricity, fuel, water, sewerage, or garbage pickup, separate and apart from their rent or mortgage. Actual utility expenses

are not allowed. Any additional utility expenses, including the telephone standard, are not used.

(4) Telephone Standard. A telephone standard of ~~\$50~~ ~~\$52~~ must be used by AGs who incur only a telephone expense. Actual telephone expenses are not allowed. Any additional utility expenses, including the SUA or BUA, are not used.

(5) Homeless Shelter Deduction. A homeless shelter deduction of ~~\$152~~ ~~\$143~~ must be used by homeless AGs who do not receive free shelter throughout the month and incur or expect to incur shelter expenses unless higher expenses are claimed.

(6) No change.

Rulemaking Authority 414.45 FS. Law Implemented 414.31 FS. History—New 1-31-94, Formerly 10C-1.603, Amended 1-12-99, 5-25-03, 8-22-05, 2-17-09, 12-13-09, 11-1-10, 12-25-11, 10-16-12, 8-11-13, 11-30-14, 1-31-16, 6-6-17, 4-4-18, 8-15-18, \_\_\_

**NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE:**

Shanise Jackson

**NAME OF AGENCY HEAD WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE:**

Chad Poppell

**DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD:**

October 4, 2019

**DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAR:**

October 14, 2019

**DEPARTMENT OF CHILDREN AND FAMILIES**

**Economic Self-Sufficiency Program**

RULE NOS.:	RULE TITLES:
65A-4.205	Penalties for Nonparticipation in Work Requirements
65A-4.206	Work Requirements Under Medical Incapacity, SSI/SSDI, and Mental Health/Substance Abuse Treatment
65A-4.212	Up-Front Diversion
65A-4.217	Teen Parents
65A-4.218	Child Care

**PURPOSE AND EFFECT:** The Department intends to amend rules 65A-4.205-.206 and .212, F.A.C., to update terms, forms, and procedure to conform to current practice.

**SUMMARY:** The amendments accomplish the following: (1) Incorporate updated forms; (2) Replace the term “regional workforce board” with “local workforce development board;” (3) Require the local workforce development board to determine up-front diversion eligibility; (4) Clarify the eligibility criteria for up-front diversion; and (5) Require individuals who are denied or opt not to receive up-front diversion to complete the entire work registration process for temporary cash assistance.

**SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COSTS AND LEGISLATIVE RATIFICATION:**

The Agency has determined that this will not have an adverse impact on small business or likely increase directly or indirectly regulatory costs in excess of \$200,000 in the aggregate within one year after the implementation of the rule. A SERC has not been prepared by the Agency.

The Agency has determined that the proposed rule is not expected to require legislative ratification based on the statement of estimated regulatory costs or if no SERC is required, the information expressly relied upon and described herein: The Department used a checklist to conduct an economic analysis and determine if there is an adverse impact or regulatory costs associated with this rule that exceeds the criteria in section 120.541(2)(a), F.S. Based upon this analysis, the Department has determined that the proposed rule is not expected to require legislative ratification.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding a statement of estimated regulatory costs, or provide a proposal for a lower cost regulatory alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

**RULEMAKING AUTHORITY:** 414.45, 445.017(6), FS.

**LAW IMPLEMENTED:** 445.017, 414.065, 414.095, FS.

**IF REQUESTED WITHIN 21 DAYS OF THE DATE OF THIS NOTICE, A HEARING WILL BE SCHEDULED AND ANNOUNCED IN THE FAR.**

**THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS:** Jodi Abramowitz. Jodi can be reached at (850)717-4470 or Jodi.abramowitz@myflfamilies.com.

**THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:**

65A-4.205 Penalties for Nonparticipation in Work Requirements.

(1) Penalty Requirements. The provisions for receipt of temporary cash assistance (TCA) include the requirement of individuals who do not meet exemptions to participate in work activities or alternative requirement plans. For the purposes of this rule “work activities” include alternative requirement plans. Failure to do so, without good cause, will result in penalties being applied in accordance with Section 414.065(1), F.S. Individuals who also receive food assistance and fail to meet TCA work requirements will be considered noncompliant with food assistance work requirements in accordance with 7 CFR ~~Part 273~~, Section 273.7(~~f~~)(6), F.S. Individuals will be notified at program entry of the work activities requirement and possible penalties for noncompliance without good cause on the ACCESS Florida Web Application, incorporated by reference in 65A-1.205, F.A.C., or the Communication and Work Activity Referral form, CF-ES 2097, 10/2005, incorporated by reference and available at <http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-XXXX> for paper applications. The Spanish version, CF-ES

2097S, 10/2005, and Creole version, CF-ES 2097H, 10/2005, of the Communication and Work Activity Referral form are incorporated by reference and available at <http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-XXXX> and <http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-XXXX>, respectively, using the Communication and Work Activity Referral, CF-ES 2097, 10/2005, incorporated by reference.

(2) Compliance with work requirements and determination of good cause for failure to comply with work requirements will be determined by the Local Workforce Development Board (LWDB) regional workforce board (RWB) designee, in accordance with Sections 414.065(1) and (4), F.S. Other good cause reasons for failure to comply include the temporary inability to participate due to circumstances beyond the participant's control such as:

(a) through (f) No change.

(3) Individuals failing to comply with work activities will be mailed notification of the failure and possible sanction by the LWDB RWB designee within two working days following the failure. The notification must inform the individuals they have 10 ten calendar days from the date the notification is mailed to contact the LWDB RWB designee to have a good cause determination made or to comply with the work requirement or penalty action will be imposed. During the 10-day ten-day period, the LWDB RWB designee is required to make both oral and written attempts to contact and to counsel the participant to:

(a) through (d) No change.

(e) Understand that compliance with work activity during the 10-day ten-day period will avoid the imposition of a sanction. The LWDB RWB designee must provide the participant with another work activity within the 10-day ten-day period if it is impossible for the participant to comply with the original assigned activity.

(4) Upon failure of the individual to respond by the date indicated, the LWDB RWB designee will notify the department to impose a sanction in accordance with Section 414.065(1)(a), F.S. Upon receipt of the sanction request, the department will notify the individual of the penalty action using the CF-ES 4192 Notice of Work Penalty form Penalties, CF-ES 4192, 04/2007 Mar 04, incorporated by reference and available at <http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-XXXX>. The Spanish version, CF-ES 4192S, 4/2007, and Creole version, CF-ES 4192H, 4/2007, of the Notice of Work Penalty form are incorporated by reference and available at <http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-XXXX> and <http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-XXXX>, respectively. An individual who provides verification

of good cause for failure to respond within the 10-day time frame will not be penalized.

(5) through (7) No change.

(8) Reinstatement of Benefits. Reinstatement of benefits requires the filing of an ACCESS Florida Application, incorporated by reference in Rule 65A-1.205, F.A.C., or an ACCESS Florida Web Application (only accepted electronically), incorporated by reference in Rule 65A-1.205, F.A.C., a Request for Assistance, CF-ES Form 2066, Jun 98, incorporated by reference in Administrative Rule 65A-1.400, F.A.C., and a face-to-face interview, unless the individual demonstrates compliance and action is being taken to reinstate benefits within 30 days from the beginning date of the penalty. Cash assistance benefits will be reinstated in accordance with Section 414.065(1)(a), F.S., as determined by the LWDB RWB designee, as long as all other factors of eligibility are met and any minimum penalty period has been served. Food assistance benefits will be reinstated in accordance with 7 CFR Section 273.7(g) of the food assistance requirements. If at the end of the food assistance penalty period the head of household is still in noncompliance, the head of household remains ineligible, but other members of the assistance group may reapply. If the other assistance group members are reapproved for food assistance, the pre-sanction TCA grant amount must be included in the food assistance benefit calculation.

~~(9) Copies of the CF-ES 2066, CF-ES 2097, and CF-ES 4192 may be obtained from the Department of Children and Families, Economic Self-Sufficiency Program Office, 1317 Winewood Boulevard, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0700.~~

Rulemaking Authority 414.45 FS. Law Implemented 414.065(1), (4) FS. History—New 12-21-97, Formerly 65A-1.521, Amended 6-10-01,\_\_\_\_\_.

65A-4.206 Work Requirements Under Medical Incapacity, SSI/SSDI, and Mental Health/Substance Abuse Treatment.

(1) The provisions for receipt of temporary cash assistance (TCA) include the requirement of individuals who do not meet exemptions to participate in work activities or alternative requirement plans which allow an individual to meet program requirements based on the individual's medical ability to comply. Individuals who claim a medical incapacity or who have an application or an appeal pending for Supplemental Security Income (SSI) or Social Security Disability Income (SSDI) are required to meet TCA program requirements in accordance with Sections 414.065(4)(d) and (f), F.S. The department will refer all applicants who do not meet an exemption under Sections 414.065(4)(d) and (f), F.S., to the Local Workforce Development Boards regional workforce board (LWDB RWB) designee. The LWDB RWB designee will determine the individual's work or alternative requirement plan activities.

(2) through (3) No change.

(4) The individual basing their exemption from TCA temporary cash assistance work activities on an application or an appeal for SSI or SSDI disability benefits must provide a copy of the disability receipt file, notices, letters, or other reasonable verification from the Social Security Administration to verify a pending SSI or SSDI disability decision.

(5) No change.

(6) The individual basing their exemption from TCA temporary cash assistance work activities on an application or appeal for SSI or SSDI disability benefits shall be informed that if denied, all extensions to time limits count toward their cash assistance life time limit of 48 months.

(7) Outpatient Mental Health or Substance Abuse Treatment. An individual may be excepted from TCA work requirements for up to five hours per week to participate in outpatient mental health or substance abuse counseling or treatment. The total number of hours cannot exceed 100 per year. The LWDB RWB designee will be responsible for verifying the need for treatment, attendance, and compliance with treatment requirements of the mental health or substance abuse professional using the CF-ES 2299, Substance Abuse and Mental Health (SAMH) Treatment Verification, Jan 01, incorporated by reference.

(8) The LWDB RWB designee will review the case at least monthly to determine the status of the SSI or SSDI application or appeal.

~~(9) Copies of form CF-ES 2299 may be obtained from the Department of Children and Families, Economic Self-Sufficiency Program Office, 1317 Winewood Boulevard, Building 3, Room 421, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0700.~~

~~Rulemaking Authority 414.45, 414.065(4)(d), (e), (f), 414.105 FS. Law Implemented 414.065(4)(d), (e), (f), 414.105 FS. History—New 4-16-00, Amended 9-4-01,\_\_\_\_\_.~~

65A-4.212 Up-Front Diversion.

(1) Pre-screening. Individuals applying for temporary cash assistance (TCA) and who indicate an interest for up-front diversion must be TCA eligible in order to be referred to the Local Workforce Development Board (LWDB) designee for screening to determine up-front diversion eligibility. LWDBs will complete an up-front diversion screening ~~temporary cash assistance (TCA) or up front diversion will complete the CF-ES 2066, Request for Assistance, Jun 98, incorporated by reference in Administrative Rule 65A 1.400, F.A.C., and will be pre-screened~~ to determine if due to an unexpected circumstance or emergency situation they have short-term barriers to obtain and maintain employment or child support that could be met through up-front diversion or if ongoing TCA is needed. ~~Pre screening includes a determination that all requirements for TCA eligibility would most likely be met; the~~

~~applicant has an unexpected circumstance or emergency situation that may be addressed through short term assistance such as up front diversion instead of ongoing TCA; and the applicant may be interested in up front diversion.~~

~~(a) If the pre screening information indicates that the applicant meets TCA eligibility criteria, but is not appropriate for up front diversion or does not want it, the applicant will complete the application process for the receipt of ongoing TCA through the department.~~

~~(b) If the pre screening information indicates the applicant meets TCA eligibility criteria, up front diversion may address the applicant's needs; and, the applicant wants to pursue up front diversion, the applicant will complete the up front diversion eligibility determination process through the regional workforce board (RWB) designee.~~

(2) The LWDB RWB designee is responsible for determining up-front diversion eligibility and approval on a case-by-case basis for the receipt of up-front diversion services, up-front diversion payment amount, or both in accordance with Section 445.017, F.S. ~~Applicants who are pre-screened by the department as potentially TCA eligible, appear to have short-term barriers to obtain and maintain employment or child support, and want to apply for up front diversion are to be referred to the RWB designee using the completed CF-ES 2066 for up front diversion eligibility determination and approval. The applicant must meet the following e~~Eligibility criteria for up-front diversion ~~include:~~

(a) The applicant has a child(ren) under age 18 (or age 18 if the child is still a full-time student in secondary school or at the equivalent level of vocational or technical training) 19 residing in the home or a pregnant woman in the family and meets TCA eligibility criteria in accordance with Sections 414.0252 (8) and 414.095(5), (14)(a), F.S.;

(b) An explanation by the family of the unexpected circumstance or emergency situation and what may be needed to resolve it; and;

(c) A determination by the LWDB RWB designee and the applicant whether or not the up-front diversion intervention will assist the family to overcome barriers to employment or child support and eliminate the need for ongoing TCA.

(3) Unexpected Circumstances or Emergency Situations. Some examples of unexpected circumstances or emergency situations that may be considered short-term barriers to obtain and maintain employment or child support in this regard are: automobile repairs; catching up on shelter payments to prevent eviction; catching up on utility bills, except for cable television and long distance telephone charges, to prevent interruption of service; medical services; replacement of income lost due to medical leave without pay; emergency child care while seeking permanent child care; and; clothing, shoes, tools or equipment necessary for ~~to~~ employment.

(4) No change.

(5) Restriction on Application for TCA. The LWDB RWB designee will use the CF-ES 2075, Agreement for Up-Front Diversion Payment/Service, Feb 01, incorporated by reference, to notify applicants that receipt of up-front diversion will restrict application for TCA for three months unless an emergency is demonstrated to the LWDB RWB designee. Both the applicant and LWDB RWB designee must sign an agreement the CF-ES 2075 noting the restriction.

(6) Approval for Payment. The LWDB RWB designee is responsible for determining the approval or denial of a family for receipt of up-front diversion services and determining, the determination of the level of financial need for a one-time only payment of up to, but and not to exceed \$1,000, or both. Up-front diversion services, such as child care or transportation, cannot exceed four months in accordance with 45 CFR Part 260, Section 260.31(b), F.S. Families who are diverted from the receipt of ongoing TCA through up-front diversion may be eligible to receive transitional support services such as child care and transportation as specified in subsection (11), of this rule. The LWDB RWB designee must stipulate the amount of the authorized payment, sign the CF-ES 2075, and inform forward the completed form to the department.

(7) Denial or Opts Not to Receive. Individuals who are denied or opt not to receive up-front diversion are instructed to complete the entire work registration process for TCA. Applicants who are denied approval for or who opt not to receive up-front diversion or who want to apply for TCA are to be referred, if appropriate, to the department for TCA eligibility determination using the CF-ES 2066, RFA, and the regular TCA eligibility application procedures.

(8) Violation of Agreement. If the family that has received an up-front diversion payment applies for TCA within three months, the family must be referred to the LWDB RWB designee for work registration and verification of a determination that a demonstrated emergency exists. Upon receipt of the determination that the family meets emergency criteria, the department will complete the TCA eligibility determination and calculate the repayment value of the up-front diversion payment. The up-front diversion repayment amount will be withheld from any TCA benefit for which the family is otherwise eligible. The amount to be withheld will be based on proration of the up-front diversion payment over eight months.

(9) Processing Time Frame. Once approval of up-front diversion is received, the department must expedite the process and approve the payment within five working days. The up-front diversion payment must be expedited and processed by the department within five work days of receipt of the completed CF-ES 2075 from the RWB designee.

(10) Medicaid, Food Assistance, and Time Limits Impact. Up-front diversion assistance does not count toward the TCA

time limits. The application for up-front diversion will not impact on the application for food assistance and/or Medicaid as long as the eligibility requirements of those programs are met.

(11) No change.

~~(12) The following form is incorporated by reference: Agreement for Up-Front Diversion Payment, CF-ES 2075 and may be obtained from the Department of Children and Families, Economic Self-Sufficiency, 1317 Winewood Boulevard, Building 3, Room 423, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0700. Rulemaking Authority 414.45, 445.017(6) FS. Law Implemented 445.017 FS. History—New 1-27-98, Amended 6-10-01,\_\_\_\_\_.~~

65A-4.217 Teen Parents.

(1) A teen parent is defined as an individual who has a child(ren) child or children of their own and who meets the definition of a minor child as stated in Section 414.0252, F.S. Participation in an approved program leading to a GED meets full-time student status for this purpose.

(2) The statement of the responsible adult will be acceptable verification that the teen parent lives with a responsible adult. All teen parents must provide proof that the teen parent has enrolled in a program meeting the school attendance requirement as a condition of eligibility for the teen parent and the teen parent's child(ren). If the teen parent is not in school but expresses an interest in attending school, the assistance group will be given a 10 ten-day pending period to provide verification of registration and attendance.

(3) No change.

(4) Parent-to-child deeming involves the following steps:

(a) through (e) No change.

(f) The balance following these steps is considered unearned income in the teen parent's child's budget.

Rulemaking Authority 414.45 FS. Law Implemented 414.095 FS. History—New 10-9-96, Formerly 10C-1.5061, Amended 5-23-99, Formerly 65A-1.5061. Amended

65A-4.218 Child Care.

(1) Access to Child Care. Temporary Ceash Aassistance (TCA) participants, including former recipients and families redirected from receipt of TCA through up-front diversion who are applying for transitional child care, may access subsidized child care assistance through referral to the Florida Community Coordinated Care for Children (4C-agency) ecommunity child care coordinating agency. The Local Workforce Development Board (LWDB) Economic Self-Sufficiency (ESS) specialist or the regional workforce board (RWB) designee will inform participants of the availability of child care assistance and will make the necessary referrals to the 4C-agency. Child care assistance is provided to TCA participants solely for assistance in complying with TCA work activities and for transitional child care.

(2) Conditions of Eligibility.

(a) Temporary cash assistance recipients may receive subsidized child care assistance when it is necessary for them to participate in TCA work or training activities allowed by federal regulation and approved by the LWDB ~~RWB~~ designees. Child care to maintain employment will be provided for the hours of employment and reasonable time for travel to and from the child care facility and place of employment and return. The need for child care and condition of need will be verified by LWDB ~~the assistance specialist or RWB~~ designee.

(b) through (d) No change.

(3) Transitional Child Care.

(a) Transitional child care is defined as child care for families whose income does not exceed 200 percent of the federal poverty level and:

1. Whose TCA has ceased due to new or increased ~~an increase in~~ employment hours or earnings or due to increased child support or who opt not to receive TCA, or

2. No change.

(b) No change.

(c) If an individual applies after the beginning of the transitional child care benefit period and needs reimbursement or payment for child care that has already been obligated for or paid during the transitional child care benefit period, the individual will be referred to the 4C- ~~community child care coordinating~~ agency.

(4) Good Cause.

(a) Individuals who lose their job rather than quit ~~their~~ the job or who have good cause for quitting their job, if eligible for subsidized child care on all other factors, may continue to receive subsidized child care while they look for other employment. The maximum period of this extension is 30 days. The subsidized child care assistance will be provided only for actual job search.

(b) Examples of good cause reasons are:

1. through 6. No change.

7. Family or health problems of the parent or child(ren) ~~children~~ requiring an extensive period of time off, which the parent is unable to arrange with the employer.

(5) Recipient Notification. The recipient will be informed as to availability of and qualifications for child care services by LWDB ~~the eligibility specialist, RWBs~~ or their contracted providers, or the 4C- ~~community child care coordinating~~ agency.

Rulemaking Authority 414.45 FS. Law Implemented 414.095(1) FS. History—New 3-5-95, Formerly 10C-1.519, Amended 8-18-97, 3-12-00, Formerly 65A-1.519, Amended 5-1-01,\_\_\_\_\_.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE:  
Shanise Jackson

NAME OF AGENCY HEAD WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Chad Poppell  
DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: October 4, 2019  
DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAR: October 14, 2019

**DEPARTMENT OF CHILDREN AND FAMILIES**

**Family Safety and Preservation Program**

RULE NO.:           RULE TITLE:

65C-23.001           Assessment

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The Department intends to amend Rule 65C-23.001, F.A.C., to clarify when an assessment must be done to determine whether to recommend a hardship extension for a minor child of a family participating in the Temporary Cash Assistance program. Additionally, the Department intends to update a form.

SUMMARY: The Department will conduct an assessment to determine if a minor child of a family participating in the Temporary Cash Assistance program should be recommended for a hardship extension at the end of the eligibility period. Additionally, the Family Safety Substitute Care Review form will be updated.

**SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COSTS AND LEGISLATIVE RATIFICATION:**

The Agency has determined that this will not have an adverse impact on small business or likely increase directly or indirectly regulatory costs in excess of \$200,000 in the aggregate within one year after the implementation of the rule. A SERC has not been prepared by the Agency.

The Agency has determined that the proposed rule is not expected to require legislative ratification based on the statement of estimated regulatory costs or if no SERC is required, the information expressly relied upon and described herein: The Department used a checklist to conduct an economic analysis and determine if there is an adverse impact or regulatory costs associated with this rule that exceeds the criteria in section 120.541(2)(a), F.S. Based upon this analysis, the Department has determined that the proposed rule is not expected to require legislative ratification.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding a statement of estimated regulatory costs, or provide a proposal for a lower cost regulatory alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

RULEMAKING AUTHORITY: 414.45, FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 414.105(3), FS.

IF REQUESTED WITHIN 21 DAYS OF THE DATE OF THIS NOTICE, A HEARING WILL BE SCHEDULED AND ANNOUNCED IN THE FAR.



THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: Jodi Abramowitz. Jodi can be reached at (850)717-4470 or Jodi.abramowitz@myflfamilies.com.

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

65C-23.001 Assessment.

The Department will conduct an assessment to determine if a minor child of a family participating in the Temporary Cash Assistance (TCA) Program should be recommended for a hardship extension at the end of the eligibility period. ~~WAGES family that has reached the end of the eligibility period for temporary cash assistance should be recommended for a hardship extension.~~ This recommendation will result from a review using Substitute Care Review form, CF-ES 2089, Sept 2019 Jul-98, incorporated by reference, to determine if the termination of the child’s temporary cash assistance would likely result in the child being placed into emergency shelter or foster care.

Rulemaking Authority 414.45 FS. Law Implemented 414.105(3) FS. History–New 4-21-99, Amended \_\_\_\_\_.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE:  
John Harper

NAME OF AGENCY HEAD WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Chad Poppell

DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: October 4, 2019

DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAR: October 14, 2019

**DEPARTMENT OF CHILDREN AND FAMILIES**

**Family Safety and Preservation Program**

RULE NOS.: RULE TITLES:

65C-27.001 Definitions

65C-27.002 Timeframes

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The Department intends to amend rules 65C-27.001 and .002, F.A.C., to align with statutory changes made in Section 39.407, F.S.

SUMMARY: The definition of “Qualified Evaluator Network” will include coordination of 60-day independent reviews. Reference to a 90-day review will be changed to a 60-day independent review. The request for the review must be made no later than 30 days from the child’s initial placement in residential treatment.

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COSTS AND LEGISLATIVE RATIFICATION:

The Agency has determined that this will not have an adverse impact on small business or likely increase directly or indirectly regulatory costs in excess of \$200,000 in the aggregate within

one year after the implementation of the rule. A SERC has not been prepared by the Agency.

The Agency has determined that the proposed rule is not expected to require legislative ratification based on the statement of estimated regulatory costs or if no SERC is required, the information expressly relied upon and described herein: The Department used a checklist to conduct an economic analysis and determine if there is an adverse impact or regulatory costs associated with this rule that exceeds the criteria in section 120.541(2)(a), F.S. Based upon this analysis, the Department has determined that the proposed rule is not expected to require legislative ratification.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding a statement of estimated regulatory costs, or provide a proposal for a lower cost regulatory alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

RULEMAKING AUTHORITY: 39.407(6)(i), FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 39.407(6), FS.

IF REQUESTED WITHIN 21 DAYS OF THE DATE OF THIS NOTICE, A HEARING WILL BE SCHEDULED AND ANNOUNCED IN THE FAR.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: Jodi Abramowitz. Jodi can be reached at (850)717-4470 or Jodi.abramowitz@myflfamilies.com.

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

65C-27.001 Definitions.

(1) through (3) No change.

(4) “Qualified Evaluator Network” means services that are contracted by the Department as of July 1, 2016, and includes the maintenance of a network of independent qualified evaluators, coordination of initial, 60-day independent review, and 90-day suitability assessments, and quality assurance activities to ensure that standardized criteria are applied by the evaluators. The Agency for Health Care Administration maintains responsibility for registering qualified evaluators as described in Rule 59G-4.266, F.A.C.

(5) through (6) No change.

Rulemaking Authority 39.407(6)(i) FS. Law Implemented 39.407(6) FS. History–New 12-30-01, Amended 3-12-17, \_\_\_\_\_.

65C-27.002 Timeframes.

(1) through (5) No change.

(6) For all children in the custody of the Department who are placed in residential treatment, an independent review must be conducted at least every 90 days after the child’s initial placement so long as the child remains placed in a residential treatment center. It is the behavioral health coordinator’s responsibility to request a 60-day independent 90-day review from the Qualified Evaluator Network provider no later than 30

60 days from the child’s initial placement in residential treatment and every 90 days thereafter so long as the child remains placed in a residential treatment center.

Rulemaking Authority 39.407(6)(i) FS. Law Implemented 39.407(6) FS. History–New 12-30-01, Amended 3-12-17,\_\_\_\_\_.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE:  
Jessica Johnson

NAME OF AGENCY HEAD WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Chad Poppell

DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: October 4, 2019

DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAR: October 14, 2019

**DEPARTMENT OF CHILDREN AND FAMILIES**

**Family Safety and Preservation Program**

RULE NO.:           RULE TITLE:

65C-28.015       Residential Mental Health Treatment

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The Department intends to amend rule 65C-28.015, F.A.C., to align with statutory changes made in Section 39.407, F.S.

SUMMARY: The community-based care agency must document a plan for an independent review to be conducted within 60 days of initial placement when a child is placed in a state other than Florida for residential mental health treatment.

**SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COSTS AND LEGISLATIVE RATIFICATION:**

The Agency has determined that this will not have an adverse impact on small business or likely increase directly or indirectly regulatory costs in excess of \$200,000 in the aggregate within one year after the implementation of the rule. A SERC has not been prepared by the Agency.

The Agency has determined that the proposed rule is not expected to require legislative ratification based on the statement of estimated regulatory costs or if no SERC is required, the information expressly relied upon and described herein: The Department used a checklist to conduct an economic analysis and determine if there is an adverse impact or regulatory costs associated with this rule that exceeds the criteria in section 120.541(2)(a), F.S. Based upon this analysis, the Department has determined that the proposed rule is not expected to require legislative ratification.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding a statement of estimated regulatory costs, or provide a proposal for a lower cost regulatory alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

RULEMAKING AUTHORITY: 39.012, 39.0121(13), 394.4781(4), FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 39.407(6), 394.4781, 394.4785, 394.479, FS.

IF REQUESTED WITHIN 21 DAYS OF THE DATE OF THIS NOTICE, A HEARING WILL BE SCHEDULED AND ANNOUNCED IN THE FAR.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: Jodi Abramowitz. Jodi can be reached at (850)717-4470 or Jodi.abramowitz@myflfamilies.com.

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

65C-28.015 Residential Mental Health Treatment.

(1) through (3) No change.

(4) Out-of-State Placements.

(a) It is the policy of the Department that children will not be placed in a state other than Florida for residential mental health treatment. Exceptions to this policy must meet the requirements outlined in subparagraph (a)1. or (a)2.:

1. No change.

2. The community-based care (CBC) lead agency has attempted to meet the placement and treatment needs of the child within the state of Florida and in-state placements have failed. The CBC must document:

a. through c. No change.

d. A plan for an independent review to be conducted within 60 days of initial placement.

d. through f. are redesignated e. through g. No change.

(b) through (e) No change.

(5) No change.

Rulemaking Authority 39.012, 39.0121(13), 394.4781(4) FS. Law Implemented 39.407(6), 394.4781, 394.4785, 394.479 FS. History–New 5-4-06, Amended 5-8-16, 11-7-17,\_\_\_\_\_.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE:  
Jessica Johnson

NAME OF AGENCY HEAD WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Chad Poppell

DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: October 4, 2019

DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAR: October 14, 2019

**DEPARTMENT OF CHILDREN AND FAMILIES**

**Family Safety and Preservation Program**

<b>RULE NOS.:</b>	<b>RULE TITLES:</b>
65C-35.001	Definitions
65C-35.002	Behavioral Health Services
65C-35.003	Parent or Legal Guardian Involvement
65C-35.004	Caregiver Involvement
65C-35.005	Child Involvement in Treatment Planning
65C-35.006	Taking a Child Into Custody Who Is Taking Psychotropic Medication
65C-35.007	Authority to Provide Psychotropic Medications to Children in Out-of-Home Care
65C-35.011	Medication Monitoring and Administration
65C-35.012	Requests for Second Opinions and Pre-Consent Reviews
65C-35.013	Medical Report

**PURPOSE AND EFFECT:** The Department intends to amend Chapter 35, F.A.C., to permit psychiatric nurses to perform certain functions in the treatment of children in custody.

**SUMMARY:** The term “physician’s designee” will be changed throughout the rules to “psychiatric nurse.”

**SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COSTS AND LEGISLATIVE RATIFICATION:**

The Agency has determined that this will not have an adverse impact on small business or likely increase directly or indirectly regulatory costs in excess of \$200,000 in the aggregate within one year after the implementation of the rule. A SERC has not been prepared by the Agency.

The Agency has determined that the proposed rule is not expected to require legislative ratification based on the statement of estimated regulatory costs or if no SERC is required, the information expressly relied upon and described herein: The Department used a checklist to conduct an economic analysis and determine if there is an adverse impact or regulatory costs associated with this rule that exceeds the criteria in section 120.541(2)(a), F.S. Based upon this analysis, the Department has determined that the proposed rule is not expected to require legislative ratification.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding a statement of estimated regulatory costs, or provide a proposal for a lower cost regulatory alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

**RULEMAKING AUTHORITY:** 39.0121, 39.01305, 39.407(3)(g), FS.

**LAW IMPLEMENTED:** 39.01305, 39.407, FS.

**IF REQUESTED WITHIN 21 DAYS OF THE DATE OF THIS NOTICE, A HEARING WILL BE SCHEDULED AND ANNOUNCED IN THE FAR.**

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: Jodi Abramowitz. Jodi can be reached at (850)717-4470 or Jodi.abramowitz@myflfamilies.com.

**THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:**

65C-35.001 Definitions.

(1) through (11) No change.

(12) “Express and Informed Consent” means voluntary written consent from a competent person who has received full, accurate, and sufficient information and explanation about a child’s medical condition, medication, and treatment to enable the person to make a knowledgeable decision without being subjected to any deceit or coercion. Express and informed consent for the administration of psychotropic medication may only be given by a parent whose rights have not been terminated, or a legal guardian of the child. Sufficient explanation includes the following information, provided and explained in plain language by the prescribing physician or psychiatric nurse to the consent giver: the medication, reason for prescribing it, and its purpose or intended results; side effects, risks, and contraindications, including effects of stopping the medication; method for administering the medication, and dosage range when applicable; potential drug interactions; alternative treatments; and the behavioral health or other services used to complement the use of medication, when applicable.

(13) through (16) No change.

(17) “Medical Report” means a report prepared by the prescribing physician or psychiatric nurse that includes information required by section 39.407(3)(c), F.S. The “Medical Report” form, CF-FSP 5339, Sept 2019 December 2017, is hereby incorporated by reference and available at <http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-XXX09351>.

(18) through (20) No change.

(21) “Psychiatric Nurse” means an advanced nurse practitioner certified under Chapter 464, F.S., and defined in Chapter 394, F.S.

(21) through (23) are renumbered (22) through (24) No change.

Rulemaking Authority 39.407(3)(g) FS. Law Implemented 39.407(1), (2), (3) FS. History—New 3-17-10, Amended 4-20-17, 6-29-17, 5-28-18,\_\_\_\_\_.

65C-35.002 Behavioral Health Services.

(1) Behavioral health services shall be provided to children in out-of-home care once the need for such services is identified. Prior to prescribing a psychotropic medication, the physician or psychiatric nurse ~~physician’s designee~~ must consider other treatment interventions that may include

medical, mental health, behavioral, counseling, or other services. All decision-making shall be guided by the principle that it is important to comprehensively address all of the concerns in a child's life – family, legal, health, education, and social/emotional issues – as well as to provide behavioral supports and parent training, so that a child's behavioral and mental health issues can be addressed in the least restrictive setting and in a comprehensive treatment plan.

(2) No change.

(3) Prior to prescribing a psychotropic medication, the physician or psychiatric nurse ~~physician's designee~~ must consider the child's history for conditions that may indicate the presence of brain injury (for example, blows to head, fetal alcohol syndrome, loss of consciousness, head scars, fever above 104°) and document any follow-up assessments or referrals on the Medical Report.

(4) No change.

Rulemaking Authority 39.407(3)(g), 39.0121 FS. Law Implemented 39.407(1), (3) FS. History—New 3-17-10, Amended 4-20-17, 5-28-18,\_\_\_\_\_.

#### 65C-35.003 Parent or Legal Guardian Involvement.

(1) The child protective investigator (CPI) or case manager shall facilitate the attendance of the child's parent (where parental rights are intact) or legal guardian at all medical appointments. The CPI or case manager shall make the following minimum efforts to assist the prescribing physician or psychiatric nurse in obtaining expressed and informed consent from the child's parent or legal guardian:

(a) No change.

(b) Facilitate telephone or tele-medicine participation between the prescribing physician or psychiatric nurse and the parent or legal guardian when unable to attend in person.

(2) If the parent or legal guardian is unable to attend medical appointments, the CPI or case manager shall:

(a) Attempt to contact the parent or legal guardian upon learning of the recommendation for psychotropic medication by the prescribing physician or psychiatric nurse ~~physician's designee~~ and provide specific information on how and when to contact the physician or psychiatric nurse ~~physician's designee~~; and

(b) Provide a copy of the Medical Report, incorporated by reference in rule 65C-35.001, F.A.C., to the child's parent or legal guardian, which includes the prescribing physician's or psychiatric nurse's contact information.

(3) When the court has authorized the provision of psychotropic medication, the CPI or case manager must continue to try to involve the parent or legal guardian in the child's ongoing medical treatment planning, and shall continue to facilitate the parent or legal guardian's communication with the prescribing physician or psychiatric nurse ~~physician's~~

~~designee~~ so that the parent or legal guardian has the opportunity to consider whether to authorize the provision of any new medications or dosages, unless the parent or legal guardian's rights have been terminated.

Rulemaking Authority 39.407(3)(g) FS. Law Implemented 39.407(3) FS. History—New 3-17-10, Amended 4-20-17, 5-28-18,\_\_\_\_\_.

#### 65C-35.004 Caregiver Involvement.

(1) through (2) No change.

(3) The caregiver shall monitor the child and report to the prescribing physician or psychiatric nurse ~~physician's designee~~ and the CPI or case manager any behavior or other incident that could indicate an adverse reaction or side effect. The caregiver must seek emergency medical care for the child if the presence of an adverse reaction or side effect to the medication is affecting the child's health or safety.

Rulemaking Authority 39.407(3)(g) FS. Law Implemented 39.407(3) FS. History—New 3-17-10, Amended 4-20-17, 5-28-18,\_\_\_\_\_.

#### 65C-35.005 Child Involvement in Treatment Planning.

(1) The prescribing physician or psychiatric nurse ~~physician's designee~~ must discuss the proposed course of treatment with the child, in developmentally appropriate language the child can understand. The physician or psychiatric nurse ~~physician's designee~~ must explain the risks and benefits of the prescribed medication to the child.

The physician or psychiatric nurse ~~physician's designee~~ will discuss with the child the following:

(a) through (j) No change.

(k) The physician or psychiatric nurse ~~physician's designee~~ plan to reduce and/or eliminate ongoing administration of the medication.

(2) The prescribing physician or psychiatric nurse must ascertain the child's position with regard to the medication and consider whether to revise the recommendation based on the child's input. The child's position must be noted in the Medical Report, incorporated by reference in rule 65C-35.001, F.A.C. The child protective investigator (CPI) or case manager shall provide the child with a copy of the Medical Report if the child is of sufficient maturity and intellectual capacity to understand the report.

(a) It is the physician or psychiatric nurse's ~~physician's designee~~ responsibility to inform the child as clearly as possible and as fully as is appropriate. However, the child's failure to understand or assent to treatment is not, by itself, sufficient to prevent the administration of a prescribed medication. Likewise, the child's assent to the treatment is not a substitute for expressed and informed consent by a parent or legal guardian or a court order. Children are more likely to be successful in treatment if they fully understand and participate in treatment decisions.

(b) The CPI or case manager shall request that Children's Legal Services file a motion for the appointment of an attorney for the child when the child declines to assent or the prescribing physician or psychiatric nurse determines that the child is not developmentally able to provide assent, or when the child has a diagnosis of a developmental disability as defined in section 393.063, F.S.

(3) Whenever the child requests the discontinuation of the psychotropic medication, and the prescribing physician or psychiatric nurse refuses to order the discontinuation, the CPI or case manager shall request that Children's Legal Services request an attorney be appointed for the child. Children's Legal Services will notice all parties and file a motion with the court, presenting the child's concerns, the physician or psychiatric nurse's ~~physician's~~ recommendation, and any other relevant information, pursuant to section 39.407(3)(d)1., F.S.

Rulemaking Authority 39.01305, 39.407(3)(g) FS. Law Implemented 39.01305, 39.407(3) FS. History--New 3-17-10, Amended 4-20-17, 5-28-18,\_\_\_\_\_.

#### 65C-35.006 Taking a Child Into Custody Who Is Taking Psychotropic Medication.

(1) When a child protective investigator (CPI) takes a child into custody he or she must ascertain whether the child is taking psychotropic medications. If so, the CPI must determine the purpose of the medication, the name and phone number of the prescribing physician or psychiatric nurse, the dosage, instructions regarding administration (e.g., timing, whether to administer with food), and any other relevant information.

(2) The CPI must seek written authorization from the parent or legal guardian to continue administration of currently prescribed psychotropic medications. The authorization shall be documented on the "Emergency Intake" form, CF-FSP 5314, May 2010, incorporated by reference and available at <http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-08063>. This authorization is good for the first 60 calendar days the child is in shelter status.

(a) No change.

(b) If the medication is not in the original container, is not clearly marked, or is not the child's current prescription, the child shall not be continued on the medication unless the prescribing physician or psychiatric nurse ~~physician's designee~~ or the dispensing pharmacy confirms that the child is currently on the prescribed medication and provides a new prescription to be filled or refilled.

(3) No change.

(4) Children's Legal Services must file a motion requesting that continuation of the medication be determined at the shelter hearing.

(a) The motion must indicate the prescribing physician or psychiatric nurse's ~~physician's~~ reasons for wanting to continue

the medication and provide the court with any other available information relevant to the request.

(b) If the CPI is unable to obtain the reason for continuing the medication from the prescribing physician or psychiatric nurse, he or she must document all efforts to obtain the information from the prescribing physician or psychiatric nurse and file it with the court prior to the shelter hearing.

(5) Authorization in a shelter order to continue the medication shall be valid only until the arraignment hearing on the petition for dependency, or for 28 calendar days following the date of removal, whichever occurs first.

(6) Within 28 calendar days of removal, or no later than the arraignment hearing on the petition for dependency, whichever occurs first, the child must be evaluated by a physician or psychiatric nurse to determine whether it is appropriate to continue the medication.

(7) No change.

Rulemaking Authority 39.407(3)(g) FS. Law Implemented 39.407(1), (2), (3) FS. History--New 3-17-10, Amended 4-20-17, 5-28-18,\_\_\_\_\_.

#### 65C-35.007 Authority to Provide Psychotropic Medications to Children in Out-of-Home Care.

(1) through (2) No change.

(3) If the parents' or guardians' legal rights have been terminated, their identity or location is unknown, they decline to approve administration of psychotropic medication, or withdraw consent to the administration of psychotropic medication and any party to the dependency action believes that administration of the medication is in the best interest of the child and medically necessary, then authorization to treat with psychotropic medication shall be pursued as follows:

(a) The case manager shall consult with the prescribing physician or psychiatric nurse within one (1) business day of being notified that the parent:

1. through 3. No change.

4. Is found by the prescribing physician or psychiatric nurse to lack the ability to provide express and informed consent.

(b) If the prescribing physician or psychiatric nurse determines that the medication is medically necessary for the child despite the lack of authorization, the case manager must obtain a completed Medical Report, incorporated by reference in rule 65C-35.001, F.A.C., from the prescribing physician or psychiatric nurse. If the parent or legal guardian withdraws consent that was previously provided or declines to consent to the administration of psychotropic medication, the parent or legal guardian's decision, and any reason provided therefore, must be recorded by the prescribing physician or psychiatric nurse ~~physician's designee~~ in the Medical Report. If the prescribing physician or psychiatric nurse determines that the parent or legal guardian cannot provide express and informed

consent, the basis for that determination must be recorded by the prescribing physician or psychiatric nurse ~~physician's designee~~ in the Medical Report.

(c) Within three (3) business days of receiving the Medical Report from the prescribing physician or psychiatric nurse ~~physician's designee~~, the child welfare professional ~~case manager~~ must submit the Medical Report and any supporting documentation to Children's Legal Services, with a request for legal action to obtain a court order authorizing the administration of the prescribed medication.

(d) No change.

(4) No change.

Rulemaking Authority 39.407(3)(g) FS. Law Implemented 39.407(2), (3) FS. History--New 3-17-10, Amended 4-20-17, 5-28-18,\_\_\_\_\_.

#### 65C-35.011 Medication Monitoring and Administration.

(1) The monitoring of the use of psychotropic medication provided to children will be the joint responsibility of the prescribing physician or psychiatric nurse ~~physician's designee~~, the caregiver, the child protective investigator (CPI) or case manager, and the CPI or case manager's supervisor. Child protective investigator supervisors and case manager supervisors shall provide ongoing review and oversight of children prescribed psychotropic medications.

(2) The caregiver and CPI or case manager are responsible for implementing the medication plan developed by the prescribing physician or psychiatric nurse. The case manager or child protective investigator shall ensure any additional medical evaluations and laboratory tests required are completed. The CPI or case manager shall add all information to the child's Resource Record and report the results of evaluations and tests to Children's Legal Services, all parties, and the prescribing physician or psychiatric nurse ~~physician's designee~~.

(3) Psychotropic medications will be administered only by the child's caregivers. Children who are age and developmentally appropriate must be given the choice to self-administer medication under the supervision of the caregiver or school personnel. Children assessed as appropriate to self-administer medication must be educated by the physician or psychiatric nurse ~~physician's designee~~ or caregiver on the following:

(a) through (e) No change.

(4) No change.

(5) Any person with information that questions the child's health and safety, including the signs or symptoms of side effects or adverse reactions to the medication, shall as soon as possible bring that information to the attention of the prescribing physician or psychiatric nurse ~~physician's designee~~, CPI or case manager, the CPI or case manager's supervisor, and emergency services shall be arranged to protect the child's safety and well-being. The child's CPI or case manager shall

provide this information to Children's Legal Services. Children's Legal Services shall notify the court and all parties within three (3) business days of the reported concerns.

(6) No change.

(7) All details about prescribed psychotropic medications, updates (including changes in dosage or physician or psychiatric nurse prescribed cessation of the medication) and all actions taken by the CPI or case manager will be entered into the Florida Safe Families Network (FSFN) by the CPI or case manager within three (3) business days of the action.

(8) through (11) No change.

(12) To ensure that the medication is continued as directed by the prescribing physician or psychiatric nurse, the CPI or case manager shall provide the caregiver with the following information:

(a) through (b) No change.

(c) The prescribing physician or psychiatric nurse's ~~physician's~~ name and contact information;

(d) through (i) No change.

(j) The physician or psychiatric nurse's ~~physician's~~ plan to reduce and/or eliminate ongoing administration of the medication; and,

(k) No change.

(13) If the child is moved from an out-of-home placement and placed in another out-of-home placement and the medication is in an unlabeled container or prescription information is insufficient, the CPI or case manager shall contact the prescribing physician or psychiatric nurse ~~physician's designee~~, if available, and dispensing pharmacist to ensure the proper identification and labeling of the medication by examining the pills (if unlabeled) or to arrange for a medical evaluation in order that treatment not be interrupted.

(14) No change.

Rulemaking Authority 39.407(3)(g), 39.0121 FS. Law Implemented 39.407(2), (3) FS. History--New 3-17-10, Amended 4-20-17, 5-28-18,\_\_\_\_\_.

#### 65C-35.012 Requests for Second Opinions and Pre-Consent Reviews.

(1) No change.

(2) Pre-Consent Reviews. The CPI or case manager shall seek a pre-consent review when:

(a) A physician or psychiatric nurse proposes prescribing psychotropic medication or changing the dosage of prescribed psychotropic medication outside the dosage parameters documented in the Medical Report; and,

(b) through (c) No change.

Rulemaking Authority 39.407(3)(g) FS. Law Implemented 39.407(3)(d)1. FS. History--New 3-17-10, Amended 4-20-17, 5-28-18,\_\_\_\_\_.

65C-35.013 Medical Report.

(1) If the parent or caregiver is unable to attend the medical appointment, the prescribing physician or psychiatric nurse must complete, ~~if not previously completed by the physician's designee~~, review, and sign the Medical Report form, incorporated by reference in rule 65C-35.001, F.A.C. The physician or psychiatric nurse ~~physician's designee~~ may submit a medical report on a form of their choice as long as the form includes all information required on the Medical Report that is incorporated by reference into rule 65C-35.001, F.A.C.

(2) When the parent and caregiver are able to attend the medical appointment and the parent provides express and informed consent for the child to be administered psychotropic medications, the prescribing physician or psychiatric nurse ~~physician's designee~~ must complete Section 5: Parental Consent of the Medical Report Form. The parent must sign this section of the form attesting to his or her consent.

(a) through (b) No change.

(3) When court authorization is needed to provide psychotropic medication, the CPI or case manager must document efforts made to enable the prescribing physician or psychiatric nurse to obtain express and informed consent from the child's parent or legal guardian on the Medical Report form. Efforts to enable the prescribing physician or psychiatric nurse must include:

(a) Dates and times the CPI or case manager attempted to contact the parent or legal guardian by phone or other means upon learning of the recommendation for psychotropic medication by the prescribing physician or psychiatric nurse;

(b) Dates, times, and methods used to attempt to contact the parent or legal guardian and provide them with specific information for how and when to contact the physician or psychiatric nurse; and,

(c) Efforts to facilitate transportation arrangements to the appointment and/or telephone calls between the parent or legal guardian and the prescribing physician or psychiatric nurse.

(4) No change.

Rulemaking Authority 39.407(3)(g) FS. Law Implemented 39.407(3)(c) FS. History--New 3-17-10, Amended 4-20-17, 5-28-18,\_\_\_\_\_.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE:  
Jessica Johnson

NAME OF AGENCY HEAD WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Chad Poppell

DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: October 4, 2019

DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAR: October 14, 2019

### Section III Notice of Changes, Corrections and Withdrawals

**PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION**

RULE NO.: 25-30.350      RULE TITLE:  
Underbillings and Overbillings for Water and Wastewater Service

**NOTICE OF CORRECTION**

Notice is hereby given that the following correction has been made to the proposed rule in Commission Docket No. 20190152-WS, published on October 7, 2019 in Volume 45, No. 195, of the Florida Administrative Register. The title at the beginning of the Notice of Proposed Rule is being corrected to read as follows:

RULE NO: 25-30.350      RULE TITLE:  
Underbillings and Overbillings for Water and Wastewater Service

### Section IV Emergency Rules

NONE

### Section V Petitions and Dispositions Regarding Rule Variance or Waiver

AGENCY FOR HEALTH CARE ADMINISTRATION  
Health Facility and Agency Licensing

RULE NO.: 59A-36.025      RULE TITLE:  
Emergency Environmental Control for Assisted Living Facilities

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that on October 4, 2019, the Agency for Health Care Administration, received a petition for variance from Rule 59A-36.025, F.A.C., from Brookdale Northdale to implement the Detailed Emergency Environmental Control Plan. The petition was assigned case number 2019015509. Any interested person or other agency may submit written comments on the petition within 14 days after this notice by e-mailing [assistedliving@ahca.myflorida.com](mailto:assistedliving@ahca.myflorida.com).

A copy of the Petition for Variance or Waiver may be obtained by contacting: Chequita Byrd, Agency for Health Care Administration, 2727 Mahan Drive, Mail Stop #30, Tallahassee, Florida 32308 or e-mailing [assistedliving@ahca.myflorida.com](mailto:assistedliving@ahca.myflorida.com).

AGENCY FOR HEALTH CARE ADMINISTRATION  
Health Facility and Agency Licensing  
RULE NO.: RULE TITLE:  
59A-36.025 Emergency Environmental Control for Assisted Living Facilities

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that on October 7, 2019, the Agency for Health Care Administration, received a petition for variance from Rule 59A-36.025, F.A.C., from Brighton Gardens of Boca Raton to implement the Detailed Emergency Environmental Control Plan. The petition was assigned case number 2019015561. Any interested person or other agency may submit written comments on the petition within 14 days after this notice by e-mailing assistedliving@ahca.myflorida.com.

A copy of the Petition for Variance or Waiver may be obtained by contacting: Chequita Byrd, Agency for Health Care Administration, 2727 Mahan Drive, Mail Stop #30, Tallahassee, Florida 32308 or e-mailing assistedliving@ahca.myflorida.com.

AGENCY FOR HEALTH CARE ADMINISTRATION  
Health Facility and Agency Licensing  
RULE NO.: RULE TITLE:  
59A-36.025 Emergency Environmental Control for Assisted Living Facilities

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that on October 4, 2019, the Agency for Health Care Administration, received a petition for variance from Rule 59A-36.025, F.A.C., from Brookdale North Naples to implement the Detailed Emergency Environmental Control Plan. The petition was assigned case number 2019015508. Any interested person or other agency may submit written comments on the petition within 14 days after this notice by e-mailing assistedliving@ahca.myflorida.com.

A copy of the Petition for Variance or Waiver may be obtained by contacting: Chequita Byrd, Agency for Health Care Administration, 2727 Mahan Drive, Mail Stop #30, Tallahassee, Florida 32308 or e-mailing assistedliving@ahca.myflorida.com.

AGENCY FOR HEALTH CARE ADMINISTRATION  
Health Facility and Agency Licensing  
RULE NO.: RULE TITLE:  
59A-4.1265 Emergency Environmental Control for Nursing Homes

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that on October 3, 2019, the Agency for Health Care Administration, received a petition for variance from subsection 59A-4.1265(5), F.A.C., from Solaris HealthCare Pensacola to implement the Detailed Nursing Home Emergency Power Plan. The petition was assigned case number 2019015495. Any interested person or other agency may submit written comments on the petition within 14 days after this notice by e-mailing LTCstaff@ahca.myflorida.com.

A copy of the Petition for Variance or Waiver may be obtained by contacting: Jacqueline Williams, Agency for Health Care Administration, 2727 Mahan Drive, Mail Stop #33, Tallahassee, Florida 32308 or e-mailing LTCstaff@ahca.myflorida.com.

AGENCY FOR HEALTH CARE ADMINISTRATION  
Health Facility and Agency Licensing  
RULE NO.: RULE TITLE:  
59A-4.1265 Emergency Environmental Control for Nursing Homes

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that on October 3, 2019, the Agency for Health Care Administration, received a petition for variance from subsection 59A-4.1265(5), F.A.C., from Solaris HealthCare North Naples, LLC to implement the Detailed Nursing Home Emergency Power Plan. The petition was assigned case number 2019015492. Any interested person or other agency may submit written comments on the petition within 14 days after this notice by e-mailing LTCstaff@ahca.myflorida.com.

A copy of the Petition for Variance or Waiver may be obtained by contacting: Jacqueline Williams, Agency for Health Care Administration, 2727 Mahan Drive, Mail Stop #33, Tallahassee, Florida 32308 or e-mailing LTCstaff@ahca.myflorida.com.

AGENCY FOR HEALTH CARE ADMINISTRATION  
Health Facility and Agency Licensing  
RULE NO.: RULE TITLE:  
59A-4.1265 Emergency Environmental Control for Nursing Homes

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that on October 3, 2019, the Agency for Health Care Administration, received a petition for variance from subsection 59A-4.1265(5), F.A.C., from Solaris HealthCare Imperial, LLC to implement the Detailed Nursing Home Emergency Power Plan. The petition was assigned case number 2019015481. Any interested person or other agency may submit written comments on the petition within 14 days after this notice by e-mailing LTCstaff@ahca.myflorida.com.

A copy of the Petition for Variance or Waiver may be obtained by contacting: Jacqueline Williams, Agency for Health Care Administration, 2727 Mahan Drive, Mail Stop #33, Tallahassee, Florida 32308 or e-mailing LTCstaff@ahca.myflorida.com.

AGENCY FOR HEALTH CARE ADMINISTRATION  
Health Facility and Agency Licensing  
RULE NO.: RULE TITLE:  
59A-4.1265 Emergency Environmental Control for Nursing Homes

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that on October 9, 2019, the Agency for Health Care Administration, received a petition for



variance from subsection 59A-4.1265(5), F.A.C., from KR at College Harbor to implement the Detailed Nursing Home Emergency Power Plan. The petition was assigned case number 2019015750. Any interested person or other agency may submit written comments on the petition within 14 days after this notice by e-mailing LTCstaff@ahca.myflorida.com.

A copy of the Petition for Variance or Waiver may be obtained by contacting: Jacqueline Williams, Agency for Health Care Administration, 2727 Mahan Drive, Mail Stop #33, Tallahassee, Florida 32308 or e-mailing LTCstaff@ahca.myflorida.com.

**AGENCY FOR HEALTH CARE ADMINISTRATION**  
 Health Facility and Agency Licensing

**RULE NO.: RULE TITLE:**

59A-4.1265 Emergency Environmental Control for Nursing Homes

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that on October 9, 2019, the Agency for Health Care Administration, received a petition for variance from subsection 59A-4.1265(5), F.A.C., from KR at College Harbor to implement the Detailed Nursing Home Emergency Power Plan. The petition was assigned case number 2019015750. Any interested person or other agency may submit written comments on the petition within 14 days after this notice by e-mailing LTCstaff@ahca.myflorida.com.

A copy of the Petition for Variance or Waiver may be obtained by contacting: Jacqueline Williams, Agency for Health Care Administration, 2727 Mahan Drive, Mail Stop #33, Tallahassee, Florida 32308 or e-mailing LTCstaff@ahca.myflorida.com.

**FLORIDA HOUSING FINANCE CORPORATION**

**RULE NO.: RULE TITLE:**

67-21.027 HC General Program Procedures and Requirements

The Florida Housing Finance Corporation hereby gives notice: On October 14, 2019, the Florida Housing Finance Corporation issued an order granting the variance from subsection 67-21.027(1) F.A.C. for Redland Crossings, LLC, to allow for calculation of the minimum set aside percentage based on income averaging. Florida Housing determined that the Petitioner had demonstrated that it would suffer a substantial hardship if the waiver was not granted. The petition was filed on October 9, 2019 and notice of the receipt of petition was published on October 11, 2019 in Vol. 45, Number 199, F.A.R. A copy of the Order or additional information may be obtained by contacting: Ana McGlamory, Corporation Clerk, Florida Housing Finance Corporation, 227 N. Bronough St., Ste. 5000, Tallahassee, FL 32301-1329.

**FLORIDA HOUSING FINANCE CORPORATION**

**RULE NO.: RULE TITLE:**

67-48.0072 Credit Underwriting and Loan Procedures  
 NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that on October 14, 2019, the Florida Housing Finance Corporation, received a petition for waiver of subsection 67-48.0072(26) Florida Administrative Code from Suncrest Court Redevelopment, LLC, requesting to extend the deadline for closing of all loans until December 31, 2019.

A copy of the Petition for Variance or Waiver may be obtained by contacting: Ana McGlamory, Corporation Clerk, Florida Housing Finance Corporation, 227 North Bronough Street, Suite 5000, Tallahassee, FL 32301-1329. The Petition has also been posted on Florida Housing's website at floridahousing.org. Florida Housing will accept comments concerning the Petition for 14 days from the date of publication of this notice. To be considered, comments must be received on or before 5:00 p.m., Eastern Time, on the 14th day after publication of this notice at Florida Housing Finance Corporation, 227 North Bronough Street, Suite 5000, Tallahassee, Florida 32301.

**Section VI**

**Notice of Meetings, Workshops and Public Hearings**

**DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE AND CONSUMER SERVICES**

Florida Forest Service

The Florida Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services, Florida Forest Service (FFS) and the Picayune Strand State Forest Management Plan Advisory Group announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: November 14, 2019, 11:00 a.m.

PLACE: Greater Naples Fire Rescue District Station 71, 100 13th Street SW, Naples, FL 34117

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: To solicit comments on management of the Picayune Strand State Forest. Comments may be presented orally or in writing at the hearing. Written comments may also be submitted to FFS's Picayune Strand State Forest Office at 2121 52ND Ave. S, Naples, FL 34117 to the attention of Mike Weston and should be mailed so as to arrive at the office prior to the date of the public hearing.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Copies of a working draft of the plan and the management prospectus are available before the date of the public hearing online at <http://www.FDACS.com/Public-Notices>; by contacting the Picayune Strand State Forest in writing at 2121 52nd Ave. S,

Naples, FL 34117; or contacting Mike Weston at (239)348-7557.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 72 hours before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Picayune Strand State Forest in writing at 2121 52nd Ave. S, Naples, FL 34117; or contacting Mike Weston at (239)348-7557. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

For more information, you may contact: Picayune Strand State Forest in writing at 2121 52nd Ave. S, Naples, FL 34117; or contacting Mike Weston at (239)348-7557.

---

#### DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE AND CONSUMER SERVICES

##### Florida Forest Service

The Florida Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services, Florida Forest Service (FFS) and the Picayune Strand State Forest Management Plan Advisory Group announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: November 14, 2019, 10:30 a.m.

PLACE: Greater Naples Fire Rescue District Station 71, 100 13th Street SW, Naples, FL 34117

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED:  
\*\*\*This is a resubmission to correct the email address.

To allow the Picayune Strand State Forest Management Plan Advisory Group to prepare for a public hearing later in the day which will provide recommendations to the FFS to help in preparation of a management plan for the Picayune Strand State Forest.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Copies of a working draft of the plan and the management prospectus are available before the date of the public hearing online at <https://www.fdacs.gov/Public-Notices>; by contacting the Picayune Strand State Forest in writing at 2121 52nd Ave. S, Naples, FL 34117; or contacting Mike Weston at (239)348-7557.

For more information, you may contact: Picayune Strand State Forest in writing at 2121 52nd Ave. S, Naples, FL 34117; or contacting Mike Weston at (239)348-7557.

---

#### DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

##### State Board of Education

The Florida Blind Services Foundation and The Division of Blind Services announces a telephone conference call to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: October 22, 2019, 6:30 p.m.

PLACE: Teleconference Phone: 1(888)585-9008, Conference Room: 319-035-377

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED:  
THIS MEETING HAS BEEN SCHEDULED TO REPLACE THE ORIGINAL MEETING THAT WAS SCHEDULED FOR OCTOBER 15, 2019 AT 6:30 P.M. THAT MEETING HAS BEEN CANCELLED.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: The Division of Blind Services, 325 West Gaines Street, Turlington Bldg., Room 1114, Tallahassee, FL 32399, Phone: (850)245-0329, Email: Selena.Sickler@dbs.fldoe.org.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 7 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: The Division of Blind Services, 325 West Gaines Street, Turlington Bldg., Room 1114, Tallahassee, FL 32399, Phone: (850)245-0329, Email: Selena.Sickler@dbs.fldoe.org. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

For more information, you may contact: The Division of Blind Services, 325 West Gaines Street, Turlington Bldg., Room 1114, Tallahassee, FL 32399, Phone: (850)245-0329, Email: Selena.Sickler@dbs.fldoe.org.

---

#### DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

The Florida Department of Transportation, District Four announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Tuesday, October 22, 2019, 6:30 p.m.

PLACE: FDOT/District Four Auditorium 3400 West Commercial Boulevard, Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33309

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: This public hearing is being conducted pursuant to paragraph 339.135(4)(c), Florida Statutes, as amended. The hearing will begin at 6:30 p.m. with a presentation explaining the FDOT's work program process followed by a presentation of the Draft Tentative Work Program of projects to occur between July 1, 2020 and June 30, 2025 in Broward, Palm Beach, Martin, St. Lucie and Indian River counties. This public hearing also will include consideration of proposed projects for Florida's Turnpike Enterprise System, as applicable. A public comment period will follow the presentations and the hearing will adjourn at the conclusion of the public comments.

All Interested persons are invited to attend and be heard. The public hearing will take place at the District Four Headquarters. Individuals can elect to attend at this location or participate via webinar. For webinar registration information, please visit <https://register.gotowebinar.com/register/7140775369656819457> Public participation is solicited without regard to race, color, national origin, age, sex, religion, disability or family status. Persons who require special accommodations under the Americans with Disabilities Act or persons who require

translation services (free of charge) should contact Kadian McLean at 1(866)336-8435 x4360 or email kadian.mclean@dot.state.fl.us or Julie Lucas at 1(866)336-8435 x4631 or email julie.lucas@dot.state.fl.us. You may also choose to contact either party at the Florida Department of Transportation, District Four, 3400 West Commercial Boulevard, Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33309-3421. Requests must be made at least seven (7) working days prior to the public hearings. Written comments will be accepted by the Department at the public hearing and within a ten day period after the public hearing. Comments should be addressed to Mr. Gerry O'Reilly, P.E., District Secretary, Florida Department of Transportation, 3400 West Commercial Boulevard, Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33309-3421 or via email gerry.oreilly@dot.state.fl.us.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: There is no agenda for this meeting. The District will have a presentation for the FY 20-25 Draft Tentative Work Program followed by an open forum for questions and comments.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 7 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Kadian McLean at 1(866)336-8435 x4360 or email Kadian.mclean@dot.state.fl.us or Julie Lucas at 1(866)336-8435 x4631 or email Julie.lucas@dot.state.fl.us. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

**DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION**

The Florida Transportation Commission announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

**DATES AND TIMES:** October 30, 2019, 1:30 p.m. (workshop); October 31, 2019, 8:30 a.m. (meeting)

**PLACE:** Gulf Coast State College, Advanced Technology Center, 5230 West U.S. Highway 98, Panama City, Florida 32401

**GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED:** October 30, 2019: General FTC issues/ business; October 31, 2019: 2018/19 Florida Department of Transportation Performance and Production Review

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: the Florida Transportation Commission, 605 Suwannee Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399, (850)414-4105.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 48 hours before the workshop/meeting by contacting: the Florida Transportation Commission, 605 Suwannee Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399, (850)414-4105.

If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

If any person decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any matter considered at this meeting or hearing, he/she will need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceeding is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence from which the appeal is to be issued.

For more information, you may contact: the Florida Transportation Commission, 605 Suwannee Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399, (850)414-4105.

**DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION**

The Florida Transportation Commission announces a telephone conference call to which all persons are invited.

**DATE AND TIME:** October 31, 2019, 10:00 a.m.

**PLACE:** 605 Suwannee Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399

**GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED:** The conference call has been canceled.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: NA

For more information, you may contact: the Florida Transportation Commission at (850)414-4105.

**REGIONAL PLANNING COUNCILS**

Central Florida Regional Planning Council

The Heartland Regional Transportation Planning Organization (HRTPO) announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

**DATE AND TIME:** October 30, 2019, 9:00 a.m.

**PLACE:** Lake Placid Town Office, Community Room, 51 Park Avenue, Lake Placid, FL

**GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED:** A Forum with DeSoto, Glades, Hardee, Hendry, Highlands, and Okeechobee Counties exploring critical mobility critical needs, transportation barriers, and enhancing mobility in the Heartland Region.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Marybeth Soderstrom, Community and Mobility Manager at 1(863)534-7130 ext. 134 or at msoderstrom@cfrpc.org.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 3 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Marybeth Soderstrom, Community and Mobility Manager at 1(863)534-7130 ext. 134 or at msoderstrom@cfrpc.org. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

If any person decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any matter considered at this meeting or hearing, he/she will need to ensure that a verbatim record of the

proceeding is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence from which the appeal is to be issued.

**REGIONAL PLANNING COUNCILS**

Central Florida Regional Planning Council

The Heartland Regional Transportation Planning Organization (HRTPO) announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: October 30, 2019, 12:00 Noon

PLACE: Lake Placid Town Office, Community Room, 51 Park Avenue, Lake Placid, FL

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Regular quarterly meeting of the DeSoto, Hardee, Highlands, and Okeechobee Transportation Disadvantaged (TD) Local Coordinating Board (LCB).

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Marybeth Soderstrom, Community and Mobility Manager at 1(863)534-7130 ext. 134 or at msoderstrom@cfrpc.org.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 3 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Marybeth Soderstrom, Community and Mobility Manager at 1(863)534-7130 ext. 134 or at msoderstrom@cfrpc.org. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

If any person decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any matter considered at this meeting or hearing, he/she will need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceeding is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence from which the appeal is to be issued.

**EXECUTIVE OFFICE OF THE GOVERNOR**

Division of Emergency Management

RULE NO.: RULE TITLE:

27P-2.002 State Comprehensive Emergency Management Plan Adopted

The Division of Emergency Management announces a workshop to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: November 5, 2019, 9:30 a.m. – 12:00 Noon

PLACE: Kelly Training Room, Sadowski Building, 2555 Shumard Oak Blvd., Tallahassee, FL 32399

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: The adoption of an updated CEMP.

A conference line is available: 1(888)585-9008, Code: 355-903-279#

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Ryan Lock, ryan.lock@em.myflorida.com.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the

agency at least 3 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Ryan Lock, ryan.lock@em.myflorida.com. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

For more information, you may contact: Ryan Lock, ryan.lock@em.myflorida.com.

**DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL REGULATION**

Board of Professional Engineers

The Florida Board of Professional Engineers Probable Cause Panel announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: November 6, 2019, 8:30 a.m. or soon thereafter

PLACE: Florida Board of Professional Engineers, 2639 North Monroe St., Building B-112, Tallahassee, FL 32303

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Although this meeting is open to the public, the Probable Cause Panel meeting may be closed consistent with law. If you wish to participate in any public portion of the Probable Cause Panel Meeting, please contact Rebecca Sammons at least 10 days prior to the meeting.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Rebecca Sammons, rsammons@fbpe.org.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 10 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Rebecca Sammons, rsammons@fbpe.org. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

If any person decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any matter considered at this meeting or hearing, he/she will need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceeding is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence from which the appeal is to be issued.

For more information, you may contact: Rebecca Sammons, rsammons@fbpe.org.

**DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL REGULATION**

Board of Professional Engineers

The Florida Board of Professional Engineers Rules Committee announces a telephone conference call to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: November 5, 2019, 1:00 p.m. or soon thereafter

PLACE: Florida Board of Professional Engineers, 2639 North Monroe St., Building B-112, Tallahassee, FL 32303

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: general business of the committee. If you would like to participate in the call, please contact Rebecca Sammons at (850)521-0500 ext. 114 at least 10 days prior to the date of the meeting. The call in number is 1(888)392-4560 (you will need to contact Ms. Sammons for the participant code).

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Rebecca Sammons, rsammons@fbpe.org.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 10 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Rebecca Sammons, rsammons@fbpe.org. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

If any person decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any matter considered at this meeting or hearing, he/she will need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceeding is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence from which the appeal is to be issued.

For more information, you may contact: Rebecca Sammons, rsammons@fbpe.org.

DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL REGULATION

Board of Professional Engineers

The Florida Board of Professional Engineers announces a telephone conference call to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: November 6, 2019, 1:00 p.m. or soon thereafter

PLACE: Florida Board of Professional Engineers, 2639 North Monroe St., Building B-112, Tallahassee, FL 32303

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: general business of the board. If you would like to participate in the call, please contact Rebecca Sammons at (850)521-0500 ext. 114 at least 10 days prior to the date of the meeting. The call in number is 1(888)392-4560 (you will need to contact Ms. Sammons for the participant code).

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Rebecca Sammons, rsammons@fbpe.org.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 10 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Rebecca Sammons, rsammons@fbpe.org. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

If any person decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any matter considered at this meeting or hearing,

he/she will need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceeding is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence from which the appeal is to be issued.

For more information, you may contact: Rebecca Sammons, rsammons@fbpe.org.

DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL REGULATION

Board of Professional Engineers

The Florida Board of Professional Engineers announces a telephone conference call to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: November 15, 2019, 10:00 a.m. or soon thereafter

PLACE: Florida Board of Professional Engineers, 2639 North Monroe St., Building B-112, Tallahassee, FL 32303

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: general business of the board. If you would like to participate in the call, please contact Rebecca Sammons at (850)521-0500 ext. 114 at least 10 days prior to the date of the meeting. The call in number is 1(888)392-4560 (you will need to contact Ms. Sammons for the participant code).

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Rebecca Sammons, rsammons@fbpe.org.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 10 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Rebecca Sammons, rsammons@fbpe.org. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

If any person decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any matter considered at this meeting or hearing, he/she will need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceeding is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence from which the appeal is to be issued.

For more information, you may contact: Rebecca Sammons, rsammons@fbpe.org.

DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL REGULATION

Florida Real Estate Appraisal Board

The Florida Real Estate Appraisal Board announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Tuesday, November 5, 2019, 9:00 a.m. Eastern Time

PLACE: Zora Neale Hurston Building, North Tower, Suite N901, 400 W. Robinson St., Orlando, FL 32801

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: To conduct a private meeting to review cases to determine probable cause and to conduct a public meeting to review cases where probable cause was previously found. Portions of the probable

cause proceedings are not open to the public. All or part of this meeting may be conducted by teleconference in order to permit maximum participation of the Board members or Board counsel.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Deputy Clerk, Division of Real Estate, 400 W. Robinson St., Suite N801, Orlando, FL 32801-1772. Only public portions of the agenda are available upon request.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 5 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

---

#### DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

Division of Recreation and Parks

The Florida Department of Environmental Protection, Division of Recreation and Parks, announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Tuesday, October 22, 2019, 9:00 a.m. – 12:00 Noon (ET)

PLACE: Weeki Wachee Springs State Park, Reception Hall, 6131 Commercial Way, Weeki Wachee, Florida 34606

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Discussion of the proposed unit management plan for Weeki Wachee Springs State Park with the advisory group members.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Mark Abrizenski, Park Manager, Weeki Wachee Springs State Park, 6131 Commercial Way, Weeki Wachee, Florida 34606, PH# (352)596-5656 or email Mark.Abrizenski@floridadep.gov.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 48 hours before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Mark Abrizenski, as listed above. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

---

#### DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

Division of Children's Medical Services

The Child Abuse Death Review Circuit 15 Committee announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATES AND TIMES: October 24, 2019, 9:00 a.m. – 12:00 Noon; November 21, 2019, 9:00 a.m. – 12:00 Noon; December 19, 2019, 9:00 a.m. – 12:00 Noon

PLACE: Department of Health, 800 Clematis Street, 2nd Floor Room # 2200, West Palm Beach, FL 33401

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: The Committee will address administrative issues, review cases, and

discuss the CADR Action Plan. A portion of the meeting is required by paragraph 383.412(3)(a), F.S. to be closed to the public to allow the Committee to discuss information that is confidential and exempt from public meetings and public records. This portion of the meeting will be announced at the meeting.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Merlene Ramnon: Merlene.Ramnon@flhealth.gov

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 7 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Merlene Ramnon: Merlene.Ramnon@flhealth.gov. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

For more information, you may contact: Merlene Ramnon: Merlene.Ramnon@flhealth.gov.

---

#### DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

Division of Children's Medical Services

The Florida Department of Health, Children's Medical Services announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Wednesday, November 6, 2019, 2:00 p.m. – 3:30 p.m.

PLACE: Child Find Stakeholder Workgroup Call

Please join my meeting from your computer, tablet or smartphone, <https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/676359309>

Join the conference call: 1. Dial 1(888)585-9008, 2. Enter room number 605-692-999#

Join from a video-conferencing room or system, Dial in or type: 67.217.95.2 or [inroomlink.goto.com](https://inroomlink.goto.com)

Meeting ID: 676 359 309 or dial directly: 676359309@67.217.95.2 or 67.217.95.2##676359309

New to GoToMeeting? Get the app now and be ready when your first meeting starts:

<https://global.gotomeeting.com/install/676359309>

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: The Early Steps Child Find Stakeholder Workgroup will meet to discuss the outcomes of activities related to Goal 1 of the Early Steps State Plan.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Hannah.Naitove@flhealth.gov.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 7 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Hannah.Naitove@flhealth.gov. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

Division of Environmental Health

RULE NOS.:RULE TITLES:

64E-6.002 Definitions

64E-6.0152 Innovative System Permitting

The Department of Health announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: October 23, 2019, 1:00 p.m. – 4:00 p.m. Eastern Time or until the conclusion of the public meeting, whichever occurs first.

PLACE: Teleconference Phone Number: 1(888)585-9008, At the prompt, enter the Conference Room number: 200-983-436#

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: The Technical Review and Advisory Panel will discuss issues relating to onsite sewage treatment and disposal systems and draft rule amendments to provisions of Chapter 64E-6, of the Florida Administrative Code. This is not a workshop, pursuant to paragraph 120.54(2)(c), Florida Statutes.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Robin Eychaner, Department of Health, Bureau of Environmental Health, 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin # A08, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1710.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 6 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Robin Eychaner, Department of Health, Bureau of Environmental Health, 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin # A08, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1710. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

If any person decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any matter considered at this meeting or hearing, he/she will need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceeding is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence from which the appeal is to be issued.

For more information, you may contact: Robin Eychaner, Department of Health, Bureau of Environmental Health, 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin # A08, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1710.

DEPARTMENT OF CHILDREN AND FAMILIES

Mental Health Program

The Department of Children and Families announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: November 7, 2019, 9:00 a.m. – 5:00 p.m.

PLACE: Hampton Inn, 2987 Apalachee Parkway, Tallahassee, FL 32301

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Pursuant to 42 U.S.C. s. 300x-3, the federal government has required that each state establish a mental health planning

council. Florida’s Planning Council represents the voices of recipients of services. The primary duty of the Council is to review the state’s block grant plan, and to monitor the allocation and adequacy of funding.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Wes Evans at Wesley.Evans@myflfamilies.com, or (850)509-8697. Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 3 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Wes Evans at Wesley.Evans@myflfamilies.com, or (850)509-8697. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

For more information, you may contact: Wes Evans at Wesley.Evans@myflfamilies.com, or (850)509-8697.

FISH AND WILDLIFE CONSERVATION COMMISSION

Vessel Registration and Boating Safety

The Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: October 29, 2019, 1:00 p.m.

PLACE: Miami Beach Police Headquarters, 1100 Washington Avenue, Miami Beach, Florida - 1st Floor “Major James Smith Community Room”

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: The Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission's preliminary determination that the City of Miami Beach has provided substantial competent evidence that a slow speed minimum wake boating restricted area in Biscayne Bay surrounding Flagler Monument Island (but excluding Meloy Channel) is necessary to protect public safety.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Kate Gorman, 620 South Meridian Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1600, (850)488-5600.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 5 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: the ADA Coordinator at (850)488-6411. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

For more information, you may contact: Kate Gorman, 620 South Meridian Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1600, (850)488-5600.

DEPARTMENT OF FINANCIAL SERVICES

Division of State Fire Marshal

The Fire & Emergency Incident Information System Technical Advisory Panel announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Thursday, November 14, 2019, 1:30 p.m.  
 PLACE: Florida State Fire College, Ocala or via conference call, (850)413-1558 Conference ID: 817561

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Regular meeting. Topics to include but not limited to a Division update, FFIRS update, EMS update.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: MaryAnn.Benson@MyFloridaCFO.com.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 10 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: MaryAnn.Benson@MyFloridaCFO.com. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

---

#### DEPARTMENT OF FINANCIAL SERVICES

Division of State Fire Marshal

The Firefighters Employment, Standards, and Training Council announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Thursday, November 14, 2019, 10 minutes after the adjournment of the FFIRS meeting which begins at 1:30 p.m.

PLACE: Florida State Fire College, Ocala or via conference call (850)413-1558 Conference ID: 817561

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Regular meeting. Topics to include but not limited to a Division and Bureau update.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: MaryAnn.Benson@MyFloridaCFO.com.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 10 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: MaryAnn.Benson@MyFloridaCFO.com. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

---

#### BOARD OF GOVERNORS

The Board of Governors, State University System of Florida announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATES AND TIMES: October 29, 2019, 8:00 a.m.; October 30, 2019, 8:30 a.m.

PLACE: University of Florida, J. Wayne Reitz Union, Grand Ballroom, 655 Reitz Union Drive, Gainesville, FL 32611

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: The Board of Governors will hold a Trustee Summit followed by a meeting of the Board and its committees to conduct the regular business of the Board. The Board of Governors Foundation will

meet to elect new officers and approve the annual operating budget.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Vikki Shirley, Corporate Secretary, Board of Governors, 325 W. Gaines St., Suite 1614, Tallahassee, FL 32399-0400, and will be available at [www.flbog.edu](http://www.flbog.edu).

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 5 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Vikki Shirley, Corporate Secretary, Board of Governors, 325 W. Gaines St., Suite 1614, Tallahassee, FL 32399-0400, (850)245-0466. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

If any person decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any matter considered at this meeting or hearing, he/she will need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceeding is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence from which the appeal is to be issued.

For more information, you may contact: Vikki Shirley, Corporate Secretary, Board of Governors, 325 W. Gaines St., Suite 1614, Tallahassee, FL 32399-0400.

---

#### DEPARTMENT OF ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITY

Division of Workforce Services

The Reemployment Assistance Appeals Commission announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: October 23, 2019, 9:30 a.m.

PLACE: Reemployment Assistance Appeals Commission, 101 Rhyne Building, 2740 Centerview Drive, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-4151.

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Deliberation for cases pending before the Reemployment Assistance Appeals Commission that are ready for final review and the Chairman's report. No public testimony will be taken.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Reemployment Assistance Appeals Commission, 101 Rhyne Building, 2740 Centerview Drive, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-4151, (850)487-2685.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 24 hours before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Reemployment Assistance Appeals Commission, 101 Rhyne Building, 2740 Centerview Drive, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-4151, (850)487-2685. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).



For more information, you may contact: Reemployment Assistance Appeals Commission, 101 Rhyne Building, 2740 Centerview Drive, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-4151, (850)487-2685.

**TREASURE COAST EDUCATION AND RESEARCH DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY**

The Treasure Coast Education & Research Development Authority announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: October 29, 2019, 3:00 p.m.  
 PLACE: Sunshine Kitchen, 7550 Pruitt Research Road, Fort Pierce, FL 34945

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: This is a public joint meeting between the Treasure Coast Education, Research and Development Authority and the St Lucie County Board of County Commissioners.

Any matters that may come before the TCERDA Board and the BOCC for their consideration/authorization, including but not limited to minutes, treasurer's report, etc.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: The Treasure Coast Research Park office at (772)467-3107.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 48 hours before the workshop/meeting by contacting: The Treasure Coast Research Park office at (772)467-3107. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

If any person decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any matter considered at this meeting or hearing, he/she will need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceeding is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence from which the appeal is to be issued.

For more information, you may contact: The Treasure Coast Research Park office at (772)467-3107.

**ENTERPRISE FLORIDA, INC.**

The Enterprise Florida, Inc. announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: October 25, 2019, 10:00 a.m.  
 PLACE: Conference Call

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: The Finance & Compensation Committee will convene to discuss the ongoing management of the organizations finances.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Katie Richardson, (850)298-6625.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 1 days before the workshop/meeting by

contacting: If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

For more information, you may contact: Katie Richardson, (850)298-6625.

**FLORIDA SPORTS FOUNDATION**

The Florida Sports Foundation, Inc. announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: November 14, 2019, 9:00 a.m.  
 PLACE: Raymond James Stadium, 4201 N. Dale Mabry Hwy., Tampa, FL 33607

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Quarterly meeting of the Board of Directors.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Jacqueline D. Hightower, [jhightower@playinflorida.com](mailto:jhightower@playinflorida.com).

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 7 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Jacqueline D. Hightower, [jhightower@playinflorida.com](mailto:jhightower@playinflorida.com). If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

If any person decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any matter considered at this meeting or hearing, he/she will need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceeding is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence from which the appeal is to be issued.

For more information, you may contact: Jacqueline D. Hightower, [jhightower@playinflorida.com](mailto:jhightower@playinflorida.com).

**METRO CONSULTING GROUP, LLC**

The Lake County announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Thursday, October 24, 2019, 5:30 p.m. – 7:30 p.m.

PLACE: Clermont Room in the Clermont Arts & Recreation Center, 3700 S. Highway 27, Clermont, FL 34711

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Lake County will host a Preferred Alternative Public Meeting for the CR 455 Extension Project Development and Environment (PD&E) Study. The study is focusing on proposed transportation improvements on new alignment in southeast Lake County from Schofield Road to Hartwood Marsh Road. The project is approximately 4.7 miles in length. This meeting provides interested persons with an opportunity to express their views concerning the social, economic, and environmental impacts of the proposed CR 455 Extension.

The meeting will be an open house format with no formal presentation. A project video will run continuously throughout the meeting and participants may review project information

and discuss the project with the study team at any time throughout the meeting. At least two County Commissioners, Lake County representatives, and study team members will be available to answer attendees' questions. The meeting displays will be posted on the study website (www.cr455extensionstudy.com) within a week after the meeting.

Public participation is solicited without regard to race, color, national origin, age, sex, religion, disability, or family status. A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Lake County Project Manager George Gadiel, P.E. by email at ggadiel@lakecountyfl.gov; by phone at (352)253-9092 or by mail at Lake County Public Works, 350 N. Sinclair Avenue, Tavares, Florida 32778.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 7 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Fred Martin at (352)343-9653 or fmartin@lakecountyfl.gov. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

For more information, you may contact: Lake County Project Manager George Gadiel, P.E. at (352)253-9092, email: ggadiel@lakecountyfl.gov.

**Section VII**

**Notice of Petitions and Dispositions Regarding Declaratory Statements**

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

Board of Nursing

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Board of Nursing has issued an order disposing of the petition for declaratory statement filed by John P. McDonough on July 10, 2019. The following is a summary of the agency's disposition of the petition:

The Notice of Petition for Declaratory Statement was published in Volume 45, No. 137, of the July 16, 2019, Florida Administrative Register. Petitioner seeks a Declaratory Statement from the Board as to whether the use of the phrase "Nurse anesthesiologist" as a descriptor of him or his practice would subject his Florida nursing licenses to discipline under Section 456.072 or 468.018, Florida Statutes. The Board's Corrected Final Order, filed on October 11, 2019, finds after review of the Petition and attachments, the Board voted to approve Petitioner's use of the term "nurse anesthesiologist" as a descriptor for himself and his job duties; although Petitioner must continue to use the CRNA license designation in every circumstance in which it is required.

A copy of the Order Disposing of the Petition for Declaratory Statement may be obtained by contacting: Joe R. Baker, Jr., Executive Director, Board of Nursing, 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin #C02, Tallahassee, Florida 32399; Joe.Baker@flhealth.gov.

**Section VIII**

**Notice of Petitions and Dispositions Regarding the Validity of Rules**

Notice of Petition for Administrative Determination has been filed with the Division of Administrative Hearings on the following rules:

NONE

Notice of Disposition of Petition for Administrative Determination has been filed with the Division of Administrative Hearings on the following rules:

NONE

**Section IX**

**Notice of Petitions and Dispositions Regarding Non-rule Policy Challenges**

NONE

**Section X**

**Announcements and Objection Reports of the Joint Administrative Procedures Committee**

NONE

**Section XI**

**Notices Regarding Bids, Proposals and Purchasing**

NONE

Section XII  
Miscellaneous

**DEPARTMENT OF STATE**

Index of Administrative Rules Filed with the Secretary of State

Pursuant to subparagraph 120.55(1)(b)6. – 7., F.S., the below list of rules were filed in the Office of the Secretary of State between 3:00 p.m., Tuesday, October 8, 2019 and 3:00 p.m., Monday, October 14, 2019.

Rule No.	File Date	Effective Date
5J-18.001	10/9/2019	10/29/2019
5J-18.0011	10/9/2019	10/29/2019
5J-18.0012	10/9/2019	10/29/2019
5J-18.002	10/9/2019	10/29/2019
5J-18.003	10/9/2019	10/29/2019
5J-18.004	10/9/2019	10/29/2019
5J-18.005	10/9/2019	10/29/2019
5J-18.0051	10/9/2019	10/29/2019
5J-18.009	10/9/2019	10/29/2019
5J-18.012	10/9/2019	10/29/2019
5J-18.0127	10/9/2019	10/29/2019
5J-18.014	10/9/2019	10/29/2019
5J-18.0142	10/9/2019	10/29/2019
5J-18.015	10/9/2019	10/29/2019
5J-18.016	10/9/2019	10/29/2019
5J-18.024	10/9/2019	10/29/2019
12A-1.097	10/8/2019	10/28/2019
12A-1.109	10/8/2019	10/28/2019
12A-1.097	10/8/2019	10/28/2019
12A-1.110	10/8/2019	10/28/2019
60S-2.017	10/14/2019	11/4/2019
61C-1.001	10/9/2019	11/1/2019
61C-4.010	10/9/2019	11/1/2019
61C-5.0015	10/9/2019	10/29/2019
61C-5.006	10/9/2019	10/29/2019
61G4-12.010	10/14/2019	11/4/2019
61H1-28.0011	10/14/2019	11/4/2019
61H1-33.003	10/14/2019	11/4/2019
61J1-2.0025	10/9/2019	10/29/2019
62-304.625	10/9/2019	10/29/2019
62-304.640	10/9/2019	10/29/2019

64B1-1.003	10/14/2019	11/4/2019
64B1-6.006	10/14/2019	11/4/2019
64B1-7.004	10/14/2019	11/4/2019
64B1-9.003	10/14/2019	11/4/2019
64B1-9.006	10/14/2019	11/4/2019
64B8-4.008	10/9/2019	10/29/2019
64B8-4.029	10/9/2019	10/29/2019
64B8-6.008	10/9/2019	10/29/2019
64B8-7.002	10/9/2019	10/29/2019
64B8-7.004	10/9/2019	10/29/2019
64B8-8.002	10/9/2019	10/29/2019
64B8-12.005	10/9/2019	10/29/2019
64B8-51.001	10/14/2019	11/4/2019
64B15-12.003	10/8/2019	10/28/2019
64B15-12.005	10/8/2019	10/28/2019
64B15-12.009	10/8/2019	10/28/2019
64B15-12.010	10/8/2019	10/28/2019
64B15-12.011	10/8/2019	10/28/2019
64B15-22.004	10/8/2019	10/28/2019
64B16-28.607	10/9/2019	10/29/2019
64B16-28.10801	10/9/2019	10/29/2019
<b>LIST OF RULES AWAITING LEGISLATIVE APPROVAL SECTIONS 120.541(3), 373.139(7) AND/OR 373.1391(6), FLORIDA STATUTES</b>		
Rule No.	File Date	Effective Date
60FF1-5.009	7/21/2016	**/**/****
64B8-10.003	12/9/2015	**/**/****

**DEPARTMENT OF HIGHWAY SAFETY AND MOTOR VEHICLES**

Division of Motor Vehicles

Executive Dtailes Plus, Inc. for the establishment of ICON low speed vehicles

Notice of Publication for a New Point

Franchise Motor Vehicle Dealer in a County of More than 300,000 Population

Pursuant to Section 320.642, Florida Statutes, notice is given that Icon EV, LLC, intends to allow the establishment of Executive Details Plus, Inc., as a dealership for the sale of low-speed vehicles manufactured by Icon EV, LLC (line-make ICON) at 8265 North Wickham Road, Suite A, Melbourne, (Brevard County), Florida 32940, on or after November 13, 2019.

The name and address of the dealer operator(s) and principal investor(s) of Executive Details Plus, Inc., are dealer operator(s): Christopher Kelley, 429 Seabreeze Boulevard, Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33316; principal investor(s): Christopher Kelley, 429 Seabreeze Boulevard, Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33316.

The notice indicates intent to establish the new point location in a county of more than 300,000 population, according to the latest population estimates of the University of Florida, Bureau of Economic and Business Research.

Certain dealerships of the same line-make may have standing, pursuant to Section 320.642, Florida Statutes, to file a petition or complaint protesting the application.

Written petitions or complaints must be received by the Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles within 30 days of the date of publication of this notice and must be submitted to: Jaime Williams, Administrator, Dealer License Section, Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles, Room A-312 MS65, Neil Kirkman Building, 2900 Apalachee Parkway, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0635.

A copy of such petition or complaint must also be sent by US Mail to: Roy F. Williams, Icon EV, LLC, 203 Kelsey Lane, Suite E, Tampa, Florida 33619.

If no petitions or complaints are received within 30 days of the date of publication, a final order will be issued by the Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles approving the establishment of the dealership, subject to the applicant's compliance with the provisions of Chapter 320, Florida Statutes.

---

#### DEPARTMENT OF HIGHWAY SAFETY AND MOTOR VEHICLES

Division of Motor Vehicles

Kingfish On MC LLC d/b/a Bert's Barracuda Harley-Davidson for the relocation of HD motorcycles

Notice of Publication for the Relocation of a Franchise Motor Vehicle Dealer in a County of More than 300,000 Population

Pursuant to Section 320.642, Florida Statutes, notice is given that Harley Davidson Motor Company Operations, Inc., intends to allow the relocation of Kingfish On MC LLC, d/b/a Bert's Barracuda Harley-Davidson as a dealership for the sale of motorcycles manufactured by Harley Davidson Motor Company Operations, Inc. (line-make HD) from its present location at 2805 54th Avenue North, St. Petersburg, (Pinellas County), Florida 33714, to a proposed location at 10525 49th Street North, Clearwater, (Pinellas County), Florida 33762, on or after November 13, 2019.

The name and address of the dealer operator(s) and principal investor(s) of Kingfish On MC LLC, d/b/a Bert's Barracuda Harley-Davidson are dealer operator(s): Robert W. King, 2090

West First Street, Fort Myers, Florida 33901, principal investor(s): Alfred Walter Flores, 2815 Lake Front Cir, The Woodlands, Texas 77380-3674, William E. Sullivan, 4121 Amhurst Drive, Highland Village, Texas 75077-3199, Tim J. Cliver, 124 Stone Hill Drive, San Antonio, Texas 78258-3657.

The notice indicates intent to relocate the franchise in a county of more than 300,000 population, according to the latest population estimates of the University of Florida, Bureau of Economic and Business Research.

Certain dealerships of the same line-make may have standing, pursuant to Section 320.642, Florida Statutes, as amended by Chapter 88-395, Laws of Florida, to file a petition or complaint protesting the application.

Written petitions or complaints must be received by the Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles within 30 days of the date of publication of this notice and must be submitted to: Jaime Williams, Administrator, Dealer License Section, Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles, Room A-312 MS65, Neil Kirkman Building, 2900 Apalachee Parkway, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0635.

A copy of such petition or complaint must also be sent by US Mail to: Bryna Dulmes, Harley Davidson Motor Company Operations, Inc., 3700 West Juneau Avenue, Milwaukee, Wisconsin 53208.

If no petitions or complaints are received within 30 days of the date of publication, a final order will be issued by the Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles approving the establishment of the dealership, subject to the applicant's compliance with the provisions of Chapter 320, Florida Statutes.

---

#### DEPARTMENT OF HIGHWAY SAFETY AND MOTOR VEHICLES

Division of Motor Vehicles

ScooterMax LLC for the establishment of JIAJ motorcycles

Notice of Publication for a New Point Franchise Motor Vehicle Dealer in a County of More than 300,000 Population

Pursuant to Section 320.642, Florida Statutes, notice is given that Triple J Import, Inc., intends to allow the establishment of ScooterMax LLC, as a dealership for the sale of motorcycles manufactured by Zhejiang Jiajue Motorcycle Manufacturing Co. Ltd. (line-make JIAJ) at 6020 South Orange Avenue, Orlando, (Orange County), Florida 32809, on or after November 13, 2019.

The name and address of the dealer operator(s) and principal investor(s) of ScooterMax LLC are dealer operator(s): Alfredo Hernandez, 6020 South Orange Avenue, Orlando, Florida 32809; principal investor(s): Alfredo Hernandez, 6020 South Orange Avenue, Orlando, Florida 32809.

The notice indicates intent to establish the new point location in a county of more than 300,000 population, according to the latest population estimates of the University of Florida, Bureau of Economic and Business Research.

Certain dealerships of the same line-make may have standing, pursuant to Section 320.642, Florida Statutes, to file a petition or complaint protesting the application.

Written petitions or complaints must be received by the Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles within 30 days of the date of publication of this notice and must be submitted to: Jaime Williams, Administrator, Dealer License Section, Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles, Room A-312 MS65, Neil Kirkman Building, 2900 Apalachee Parkway, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0635.

A copy of such petition or complaint must also be sent by US Mail to: John Wu, Triple J Import Inc, 6654-A Jimmy Carter Boulevard, Norcross, Georgia, 30071.

If no petitions or complaints are received within 30 days of the date of publication, a final order will be issued by the Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles approving the establishment of the dealership, subject to the applicant's compliance with the provisions of Chapter 320, Florida Statutes.

---

#### DEPARTMENT OF HIGHWAY SAFETY AND MOTOR VEHICLES

##### Division of Motor Vehicles

Scooter Steve's LLC for the establishment of ZHNG motorcycles

##### Notice of Publication for a New Point

Franchise Motor Vehicle Dealer in a County of More than 300,000 Population

Pursuant to Section 320.642, Florida Statutes, notice is given that Hammer Brand, LLC, d/b/a Wolf Brand Scooters intends to allow the establishment of Scooter Steve's LLC, as a dealership for the sale of motorcycles manufactured by Taizhou Zhongneng Motorcycle Co., Ltd. (line-make ZHNG) at 164 Northwest 20th Street, Suite 106, Miami, (Miami-Dade County), Florida 33127, on or after November 13, 2019.

The name and address of the dealer operator(s) and principal investor(s) of Scooter Steve's LLC are dealer operator(s): Stephen Piscitelli, 90 Alton Road, Apt. 3005, Miami Beach, Florida 33139; principal investor(s): Stephen Piscitelli, 90 Alton Road, Apt. 3005, Miami Beach, Florida 33139.

The notice indicates intent to establish the new point location in a county of more than 300,000 population, according to the latest population estimates of the University of Florida, Bureau of Economic and Business Research.

Certain dealerships of the same line-make may have standing, pursuant to Section 320.642, Florida Statutes, to file a petition or complaint protesting the application.

Written petitions or complaints must be received by the Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles within 30 days of the date of publication of this notice and must be submitted to: Jaime Williams, Administrator, Dealer License Section, Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles, Room A-312 MS65, Neil Kirkman Building, 2900 Apalachee Parkway, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0635.

A copy of such petition or complaint must also be sent by US Mail to: Justin Marmolejo, Hammer Brand, LLC, 12485 44th Street North, Suite A, Clearwater, Florida, 33762.

If no petitions or complaints are received within 30 days of the date of publication, a final order will be issued by the Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles approving the establishment of the dealership, subject to the applicant's compliance with the provisions of Chapter 320, Florida Statutes.

---

#### DEPARTMENT OF HIGHWAY SAFETY AND MOTOR VEHICLES

##### Division of Motor Vehicles

Seaside Powersports, LLC for the establishment of JDRA motorcycles

##### Notice of Publication for a New Point

Franchise Motor Vehicle Dealer in a County of More than 300,000 Population

Pursuant to Section 320.642, Florida Statutes, notice is given that Genuine Scooters LLC, intends to allow the establishment of Seaside Powersports, LLC, as a dealership for the sale of motorcycles manufactured by Jiangsu Dafier Motorcycle Co., Ltd. (line-make JDRA) at 850 North Dixie Highway, Lantana, (Palm Beach County), Florida 33462, on or after November 13, 2019.

The name and address of the dealer operator(s) and principal investor(s) of Seaside Powersports, LLC are dealer operator(s): Charlie Banner, 850 Dixie Highway, Lantana, Florida 33462; principal investor(s): Charlie Banner, 850 Dixie Highway, Lantana, Florida 33462.

The notice indicates intent to establish the new point location in a county of more than 300,000 population, according to the latest population estimates of the University of Florida, Bureau of Economic and Business Research.

Certain dealerships of the same line-make may have standing, pursuant to Section 320.642, Florida Statutes, to file a petition or complaint protesting the application.

Written petitions or complaints must be received by the Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles within 30 days of the date of publication of this notice and must be submitted to: Jaime Williams, Administrator, Dealer License Section, Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles, Room A-312 MS65, Neil Kirkman Building, 2900 Apalachee Parkway, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0635.

A copy of such petition or complaint must also be sent by US Mail to: Sarah Miyashiro, Genuine Scooters LLC, 2700 West Grand Avenue, Chicago, Illinois 60612.

If no petitions or complaints are received within 30 days of the date of publication, a final order will be issued by the Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles approving the establishment of the dealership, subject to the applicant's compliance with the provisions of Chapter 320, Florida Statutes.

---

DEPARTMENT OF HIGHWAY SAFETY AND MOTOR VEHICLES

Division of Motor Vehicles

Seaside Powersports, LLC for the establishment of MOTV motorcycles

Notice of Publication for a New Point

Franchise Motor Vehicle Dealer in a County of More than 300,000 Population

Pursuant to Section 320.642, Florida Statutes, notice is given that Genuine Scooters LLC, intends to allow the establishment of Seaside Powersports, LLC, as a dealership for the sale of motorcycle manufactured by Motive Power Industry Co. Ltd. (line-make MOTV) at 850 North Dixie Highway, Lantana, (Palm Beach County), Florida 33462, on or after November 13, 2019.

The name and address of the dealer operator(s) and principal investor(s) of Seaside Powersports, LLC are dealer operator(s): Charlie Banner, 850 Dixie Highway, Lantana, Florida 33462; principal investor(s): Charlie Banner, 850 Dixie Highway, Lantana, Florida 33462.

The notice indicates intent to establish the new point location in a county of more than 300,000 population, according to the latest population estimates of the University of Florida, Bureau of Economic and Business Research.

Certain dealerships of the same line-make may have standing, pursuant to Section 320.642, Florida Statutes, to file a petition or complaint protesting the application.

Written petitions or complaints must be received by the Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles within 30 days of the date of publication of this notice and must be submitted to: Jaime Williams, Administrator, Dealer License Section, Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles, Room A-312 MS65, Neil Kirkman Building, 2900 Apalachee Parkway, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0635.

A copy of such petition or complaint must also be sent by US Mail to: Sarah Miyashiro, Genuine Scooters LLC, 2700 West Grand Avenue, Chicago, Illinois 60612.

If no petitions or complaints are received within 30 days of the date of publication, a final order will be issued by the Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles approving the establishment of the dealership, subject to the applicant's compliance with the provisions of Chapter 320, Florida Statutes.

---

DEPARTMENT OF HIGHWAY SAFETY AND MOTOR VEHICLES

Division of Motor Vehicles

Seaside Powersports, LLC for the establishment of SHIN motorcycles

Notice of Publication for a New Point

Franchise Motor Vehicle Dealer in a County of More than 300,000 Population

Pursuant to Section 320.642, Florida Statutes, notice is given that Genuine Scooters LLC, intends to allow the establishment of Seaside Powersports, LLC, as a dealership for the sale of motorcycles manufactured by Chongqing Shinery Motorcycle Co., Ltd. (line-make SHIN) at 850 North Dixie Highway, Lantana, (Palm Beach County), Florida, 33462, on or after November 13, 2019.

The name and address of the dealer operator(s) and principal investor(s) of Seaside Powersports, LLC, are dealer operator(s): Charlie Banner, 850 Dixie Highway, Lantana, Florida 33462; principal investor(s): Charlie Banner, 850 Dixie Highway, Lantana, Florida 33462.

The notice indicates intent to establish the new point location in a county of more than 300,000 population, according to the latest population estimates of the University of Florida, Bureau of Economic and Business Research.

Certain dealerships of the same line-make may have standing, pursuant to Section 320.642, Florida Statutes, to file a petition or complaint protesting the application.

Written petitions or complaints must be received by the Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles within 30 days of the date of publication of this notice and must be submitted to: Jaime Williams, Administrator, Dealer License Section, Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles, Room A-312 MS65, Neil Kirkman Building, 2900 Apalachee Parkway, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0635.

A copy of such petition or complaint must also be sent by US Mail to: Sarah Miyashiro, Genuine Scooters LLC, 2700 West Grand Avenue, Chicago, Illinois 60612.

If no petitions or complaints are received within 30 days of the date of publication, a final order will be issued by the Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles approving the establishment of the dealership, subject to the applicant's compliance with the provisions of Chapter 320, Florida Statutes.

---

## DEPARTMENT OF HIGHWAY SAFETY AND MOTOR VEHICLES

## Division of Motor Vehicles

TruckMax, Inc. for the establishment of ICON low speed vehicles

Notice of Publication for a New Point Franchise Motor Vehicle Dealer in a County of More than 300,000 Population

Pursuant to Section 320.642, Florida Statutes, notice is given that Icon EV, LLC, intends to allow the establishment of TruckMax, Inc., as a dealership for the sale of low-speed vehicles manufactured by Icon EV, LLC (ICON) at 6000 Northwest 77th Court, Miami, (Miami-Dade County), Florida 33166, on or after November 13, 2019.

The name and address of the dealer operator(s) and principal investor(s) of TruckMax Inc are dealer operator(s): Joseph A. Demaria, 6000 Northwest 77th Court, Miami, Florida 33166; principal investor(s): Joseph A. Demaria, 6000 Northwest 77th Court, Miami, Florida 33166.

The notice indicates intent to establish the new point location in a county of more than 300,000 population, according to the latest population estimates of the University of Florida, Bureau of Economic and Business Research.

Certain dealerships of the same line-make may have standing, pursuant to Section 320.642, Florida Statutes, to file a petition or complaint protesting the application.

Written petitions or complaints must be received by the Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles within 30 days of the date of publication of this notice and must be submitted to: Jaime Williams, Administrator, Dealer License Section, Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles, Room A-312 MS65, Neil Kirkman Building, 2900 Apalachee Parkway, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0635.

A copy of such petition or complaint must also be sent by US Mail to: Roy F. Williams, Icon EV, LLC, 203 Kelsey Lane, Suite E, Tampa, Florida 33619.

If no petitions or complaints are received within 30 days of the date of publication, a final order will be issued by the Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles approving the establishment of the dealership, subject to the applicant's compliance with the provisions of Chapter 320, Florida Statutes.

## DEPARTMENT OF HIGHWAY SAFETY AND MOTOR VEHICLES

## Division of Motor Vehicles

Seaside Powersports, LLC for the establishment of NGBO motorcycles

Notice of Publication for a New Point Franchise Motor Vehicle Dealer in a County of More than 300,000 Population

Pursuant to Section 320.642, Florida Statutes, notice is given that Genuine Scooters LLC, intends to allow the establishment of Seaside Powersports, LLC, as a dealership for the sale and service of motorcycle manufactured by Ningbo Longjia Motorcycle Co., Ltd. (line-make NGBO) at 850 North Dixie Highway, Lantana, (Palm Beach County), Florida 33462, on or after November 15, 2019.

The name and address of the dealer operator(s) and principal investor(s) of Seaside Powersports, LLC are dealer operator(s): Charlie Banner, 850 Dixie Highway, Lantana, Florida 33462; principal investor(s): Charlie Banner, 850 Dixie Highway, Lantana, Florida 33462.

The notice indicates intent to establish the new point location in a county of more than 300,000 population, according to the latest population estimates of the University of Florida, Bureau of Economic and Business Research.

Certain dealerships of the same line-make may have standing, pursuant to Section 320.642, Florida Statutes, to file a petition or complaint protesting the application.

Written petitions or complaints must be received by the Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles within 30 days of the date of publication of this notice and must be submitted to: Jaime Williams, Administrator, Dealer License Section, Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles, Room A-312 MS65, Neil Kirkman Building, 2900 Apalachee Parkway, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0635.

A copy of such petition or complaint must also be sent by US Mail to: Sarah Miyashiro, Genuine Scooters LLC, 2700 West Grand Avenue, Chicago, Illinois, 60612.

If no petitions or complaints are received within 30 days of the date of publication, a final order will be issued by the Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles approving the establishment of the dealership, subject to the applicant's compliance with the provisions of Chapter 320, Florida Statutes.

## AGENCY FOR HEALTH CARE ADMINISTRATION

## Medicaid

## State Plan Amendment

The Agency for Health Care Administration is requesting an amendment to the Medicaid State Plan. The amendment adds language regarding Practitioner Reimbursement Methodology for services outlined in the State Plan. This amendment to the State Plan will have no federal fiscal impact for federal fiscal year (FFY) 2019-20 and FFY 2020-21. The effective date for this amendment will be December 1, 2019.

Interested parties may contact the following staff for further information: Jesse Bottcher, Bureau of Medicaid Policy, located at 2727 Mahan Drive, Mail Stop 23, Tallahassee, Florida 32308-5407; by telephone at: (850)412-4242 or by e-mail at: Jesse.Bottcher@ahca.myflorida.com.

DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION  
Office of the Secretary  
Florida State Clearinghouse

The state is coordinating reviews of federal activities and federally funded projects as required by subsection 403.061(42), F.S. This includes Outer Continental Shelf activities and other actions subject to federal consistency review under the Florida Coastal Management Program. A list of projects, comments and deadlines, and the address for providing comments, are available at: <https://fldep.dep.state.fl.us/clearinghouse/>. For information, call (850)717-9076. This public notice fulfills the requirements of 15 CFR 930.

DEPARTMENT OF FINANCIAL SERVICES

Division of Rehabilitation and Liquidation  
NOTICE TO ALL POLICYHOLDERS, CREDITORS, AND CLAIMANTS HAVING BUSINESS WITH FLORIDA SPECIALTY INSURANCE COMPANY.  
IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF THE SECOND JUDICIAL CIRCUIT, IN AND FOR LEON COUNTY, FLORIDA  
CASE NO.: 2019 CA 002328

In Re: The Receivership of FLORIDA SPECIALTY INSURANCE COMPANY, a Florida corporation authorized to transact property and casualty insurance business.

NOTICE TO ALL POLICYHOLDERS, CREDITORS, AND CLAIMANTS HAVING BUSINESS WITH FLORIDA SPECIALTY INSURANCE COMPANY.

You are hereby notified that by order of the Circuit Court of the Second Judicial Circuit, in and for Leon County, Florida, entered the 2nd day of October, 2019, the Department of Financial Services of the State of Florida was appointed as Receiver of FLORIDA SPECIALTY INSURANCE COMPANY (hereinafter “the Department”) effective October 2, 2019, and was ordered to liquidate the assets of said company.

Policyholders, claimants, creditors, and other persons having claims against the assets of FLORIDA SPECIALTY INSURANCE COMPANY shall present such claims to the Department as the Receiver on or before 11:59:59 p.m. ET, on Friday, October 2, 2020. It is intended that this deadline also be the date certain specified in subsection 631.181(5), Florida Statutes, after which no further claims may be filed.

FLORIDA SPECIALTY INSURANCE COMPANY policies will be automatically cancelled effective 12:01 a.m. Sunday, November 2, 2019, if they have not been cancelled before that date.

Information regarding the method for filing claims in the liquidation proceeding and other information regarding the receivership process is available on the Department’s website, [www.myfloridacfo.com/division/receiver](http://www.myfloridacfo.com/division/receiver).

Section XIII  
Index to Rules Filed During Preceding  
Week

INDEX TO RULES FILED BETWEEN  
OCTOBER 7, 2019 AND OCTOBER 11, 2019

Rule No.	File Date	Effective Date	Proposed Vol./No.	Amended Vol./No.
----------	-----------	----------------	-------------------	------------------

**DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE AND CONSUMER SERVICES**

**Division of Consumer Services**

5J-18.001	10/9/2019	10/29/2019	45/154	
5J-18.0011	10/9/2019	10/29/2019	45/154	45/175
5J-18.0012	10/9/2019	10/29/2019	45/154	45/175
5J-18.002	10/9/2019	10/29/2019	45/154	
5J-18.003	10/9/2019	10/29/2019	45/154	45/175
5J-18.004	10/9/2019	10/29/2019	45/154	
5J-18.005	10/9/2019	10/29/2019	45/154	
5J-18.0051	10/9/2019	10/29/2019	45/154	
5J-18.009	10/9/2019	10/29/2019	45/154	
5J-18.012	10/9/2019	10/29/2019	45/154	
5J-18.0127	10/9/2019	10/29/2019	45/154	45/175
5J-18.014	10/9/2019	10/29/2019	45/154	
5J-18.0142	10/9/2019	10/29/2019	45/154	
5J-18.015	10/9/2019	10/29/2019	45/154	
5J-18.016	10/9/2019	10/29/2019	45/154	
5J-18.024	10/9/2019	10/29/2019	45/154	

**DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE**

**Sales and Use Tax**

12A-1.097	10/8/2019	10/28/2019	45/145	
12A-1.097	10/8/2019	10/28/2019	45/145	
12A-1.109	10/8/2019	10/28/2019	45/145	
12A-1.110	10/8/2019	10/28/2019	45/145	45/158

**DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL REGULATION**

**Division of Hotels and Restaurants**

61C-1.001	10/9/2019	11/1/2019	45/158	
61C-4.010	10/9/2019	11/1/2019	45/158	
61C-5.0015	10/9/2019	10/29/2019	45/159	
61C-5.006	10/9/2019	10/29/2019	45/159	

**Florida Real Estate Appraisal Board**

61J1-2.0025	10/9/2019	10/29/2019	45/102	45/175
-------------	-----------	------------	--------	--------



**DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION**

62-304.625 10/9/2019 10/29/2019 45/147  
 62-304.640 10/9/2019 10/29/2019 45/147

**DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH**

**Board of Medicine**

64B8-4.008 10/9/2019 10/29/2019 45/174  
 64B8-4.029 10/9/2019 10/29/2019 45/174  
 64B8-6.008 10/9/2019 10/29/2019 45/174  
 64B8-7.002 10/9/2019 10/29/2019 45/174  
 64B8-7.004 10/9/2019 10/29/2019 45/174  
 64B8-8.002 10/9/2019 10/29/2019 45/174  
 64B8-12.005 10/9/2019 10/29/2019 45/174

**Board of Osteopathic Medicine**

64B15-12.003 10/8/2019 10/28/2019 45/173  
 64B15-12.005 10/8/2019 10/28/2019 45/173  
 64B15-12.009 10/8/2019 10/28/2019 45/173  
 64B15-12.010 10/8/2019 10/28/2019 45/173  
 64B15-12.011 10/8/2019 10/28/2019 45/173  
 64B15-22.004 10/8/2019 10/28/2019 45/173

**Board of Pharmacy**

64B16-28.10801 10/9/2019 10/29/2019 45/176  
 64B16-28.607 10/9/2019 10/29/2019 45/176

**DEPARTMENT OF FINANCIAL SERVICES**

**Division of State Fire Marshal**

69A-40.024 10/7/2019 10/27/2019 45/133  
 69A-40.028 10/7/2019 10/27/2019 45/133  
 69A-40.029 10/7/2019 10/27/2019 45/133  
 69A-40.031 10/7/2019 10/27/2019 45/133  
 69A-40.035 10/7/2019 10/27/2019 45/133  
 69A-40.037 10/7/2019 10/27/2019 45/133

**LIST OF RULES AWAITING LEGISLATIVE REVIEW/  
 APPROVAL PURSUANT TO SECTIONS 120.541(3),  
 373.139(7) AND/OR 373.1391(6), FLORIDA STATUTES**

**DEPARTMENT OF MANAGEMENT SERVICES**

**E911 Board**

60FF1-5.009 7/21/2016 \*\*/\*\*/\*\*\*\* 42/105

**DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH**

**Board of Medicine**

64B8-10.003 12/9/2015 \*\*/\*\*/\*\*\*\* 39/95 41/49

NOTE: The above section will be published on Tuesday beginning October 2, 2012, unless Monday is a holiday, then it will be published on Wednesday of that week.